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mission
Box Hill Institute exists to provide training and 
education to meet the workforce development needs 
of the communities we serve by developing skills,  
which enable students to participate and optimise 
opportunities in the employment market and which 
enable enterprises to be competitive, sustainable and 
successful in the marketplace.

values
Box Hill Institute adopts the following values to 
underpin and guide its day-to-day activity and  
future development:

Integrity
We will operate ethically, reliably and honestly.

Excellence
We will exceed expectations and strive to be the best 
we can be.

Care and Respect
We will provide a caring and understanding 
environment, acknowledging each other’s individuality 
and differences.

Differentiation
We will be leaders in our fields and create unique 
points of difference that set what we do apart from 
other education and training providers.

vision, mission  
and values
vision 

Box Hill Institute will be Australia’s No. 1 global 
vocational education and training provider.

commitments
Box Hill Institute is committed to the following:

Students
Providing students with excellence in teaching, a 
positive learning environment and the opportunity to 
excel in the global employment market.

Skills
Providing industry and the community with the 
highest skills which will develop capability and 
achieve global competitiveness.

Staff
Providing a working environment that attracts staff, 
nurtures leaders and encourages excellence and a 
global outlook.

Service
Service excellence in everything we do.
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about
A leading tertiary institution operating within 
Australia and internationally, Box Hill Institute is a 
registered higher education provider, a registered 
training organisation (RTO) and a non-school senior 
secondary provider. Accordingly, the Institute is 
licensed and registered to operate across the 
secondary, vocational education and training (VET), 
and the higher education sectors. The Institute prides 
itself on its ability to successfully deliver a broad range 
of quality vocational education and training services. 
It is one of the largest providers in Victoria with over 
40,000 enrolments. 

programs
The Institute delivers more than 600 courses including 
many that are delivered internationally and within 
industry, covering a range of short courses, certificates, 
diplomas, associate degrees and degrees.

services
Box Hill Institute offers a range of services including 
industry consultancy, project management, skills 
recognition and employment services.

campuses
Box Hill Institute has five campuses located in Victoria 
which includes three in Box Hill: Elgar Campus, 
Nelson Campus and Whitehorse Campus, and the 
Ceylon campus which is located in Nunawading. 
There is an additional facility for automotive and 
prevocational studies located in Box Hill. 

The Institute also has a city campus, co-located with 
the Centre for Adult Education, in Melbourne’s central 
business district. 

The Institute has extended campuses around the 
world including: China, Dubai, Fiji, Kuwait, Malaysia, 
Papua New Guinea, Saudi Arabia, Vietnam and a 
new Singapore campus.

specialist centres
The Institute is home to three Specialist Centres 
delivering industry focussed training solutions:

•	 Specialist Centre for Biotechnology Training, 
BioSkills 

•	 Specialist Centre for Services for Small to  
Medium Enterprises 

•	 Specialist Centre for Information and 
Communications Technology (ICT).

Plus two Centres for Excellence:

•	 Centre for Excellence in Climate Control  
and Refrigeration

•	 Bakers Delight Centre for Excellence in  
Bakery Training. 

training workplaces
Box Hill Institute operates a large number of 
authenticated training workplaces that are unique  
to the relevant teaching centres responsible for  
their operation.

They include: 

•	 Aveda Day Spa

•	 Bakers Delight Centre for Excellence in  
Bakery Training

•	 Flowers on Elgar

•	 Fountains Restaurant

•	 InnovaBio – a student-run biotechnology enterprise

•	 Lighting and Sound Hire (LASH)

•	 Music Industry Business Office (MiBO)

•	 Nursing Skills Centre of Excellence (NSCE)

•	 Pets on Elgar

•	 Salon on Elgar

•	 Whitehorse Fitness Centre.

history
Box Hill Institute is the descendant of two Box Hill 
area technical schools. ‘Box Hill Technical School 
for Girls and Women’ was opened on 4 September 
1924, and on 2 February 1943 the ‘Box Hill Technical 
School for Boys’ was established. The Girls Technical 
School was renamed ‘Whitehorse Technical School’ 
in 1971. 

Around this time the Boys Technical School separated 
its tertiary technical offerings from the secondary 
ones, the tertiary section becoming ‘Box Hill Technical 
School’. Both schools were declared colleges of 
Technical and Further Education in late 1981. 

Whitehorse Technical School and Box Hill Technical 
School merged to become ‘Box Hill College of TAFE’ 
which was established by an Order in Council dated 
25 January 1984, under the Victorian Post-secondary 
Education Act 1978, following an amalgamation with 
the Whitehorse College of TAFE. 

The Governor in Council approved orders changing 
the name of Box Hill College of TAFE to Box Hill 
Institute of TAFE on 12 September 1995. The 
functions, powers and duties of the Institute are set 
out in the Education and Training Reform Act 2006 
and the Constitution of the Box Hill Institute of TAFE. 

The relevant Minister is:  
The Honourable Peter Hall, MLC, 
Minister for Higher Education and Skills, 
Minister Responsible for the Teaching Profession,  
Member for Eastern Victoria.

establishment
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partnerships
Box Hill Institute understands in the 
importance of creating strong partnerships and 
collaborations and has recently developed and 
strengthened several key strategic alliances. 

box hill institute and 
the cae partnership 
In November 2012, an amendment to the Education 
and Training Reform Act was passed to enable the 
operations of the Centre for Adult Education (CAE) to 
be governed by Box Hill Institute. 

Under that legislation, the Box Hill Institute Board is 
now the Board of the CAE. However Box Hill Institute 
and CAE will continue to operate as separate legal 
entities. A focus during the year was to integrate 
core systems, as well as relevant programs of both 
organisations to enhance opportunities  for service 
delivery to learners and students. 

university partners
In 2012, Box Hill Institute strengthened its 
partnerships with selected universities. These 
relationships have created new pathways and 
opportunities for students at Box Institute. The 
Institute has formal agreements in place with:

•	 Australian Catholic University

•	 Deakin University

•	 Latrobe University

•	 Monash University.

other educational 
alliances
Box Hill Institute has an international alliance with the 
Global Education Network comprising:

•	 Institute of Technical Education (Singapore)

•	 Kirkwood Community College (USA)

•	 Southern Alberta Institute of Technology (Canada).

The Post Secondary International Network (PIN) is 
an alliance of postsecondary institutions dedicated 
to the continuance of international education and 
understanding through a sharing of experience.

In 2012, Box Hill Institute partnered with a number 
of institutes in Australia and Europe to deliver the 
Vocational Certificate in Working Globally. The 
partnership comprises the following institutes:

•	 South West TAFE (Victoria)

•	 Challenger TAFE (Western Australia)

•	 Adam Smith College (Scotland)

•	 Silkeborg Technical School (Denmark)

•	 Alfa College (Netherlands).



b
o

x
 h

il
l

 i
n

s
t

it
u

t
e

  
2

0
12

 a
n

n
u

a
l

 r
e

p
o

r
t

5

international 
partnerships
Community Colleges for 
International Development
During 2012, Box Hill Institute was invited to 
become a Board member of Community Colleges 
for International Development (CCID). The CCID is a 
consortium of 160 two-year colleges in the United 
States and twelve other countries. It is the  
pre-eminent two-year college organisation in the 
United States working on all aspects of global 
vocational/professional education, and training 
overseas. CCID provides an international network for 
community colleges to further their internationalization 
initiatives and to enhance the development of a 
globally competent workforce for the communities 
they serve.

University of Cambridge  
ESOL Examination
During the year, the Institute signed an agreement 
with the University of Cambridge ESOL Examinations 
(Cambridge ESOL) to work towards the delivery 
of language assessment services in Australia and 
around the world. The alliance aims to further 
advance the delivery of testing and assessment 
services in Australia and globally, including without 
limitation, a strategic collaboration for delivery and 
assessment of the Occupational English Test.

Mendaki Sense - Singapore
Box Hill Institute signed a Memorandum of 
Understanding with Dr Yaacob Ibrahim, Cabinet 
Minister of Information, Communication and the  
Arts, on behalf of the Mendaki Foundation to 
collaborate on training programs with Mendaki  
Sense (an accredited Continuing Education and 
Training organisation) in Singapore.

Off-shore Vocational and  
Education Training
Box Hill Institute provides education and training in a 
range of international locations including campuses 
and licensed partners in Melbourne, Singapore, 
Macau, Kuwait, Tehran, Dubai, Abu Dhabi, Fiji, 
Samoa, Papua New Guinea, Vanuatu, Vietnam, 
Malaysia and China.

International Clients
Box Hill Institute works with a diverse range of 
international clients to build their workforce capability. 
In 2012, the Institute provided training and services 
to clients based in various countries including 
Singapore, Malaysia, Colombia, Macau, the Maldives, 
China and the United Arab Emirates.

local partnerships
School Partnerships
Box Hill Institute has partnerships with over 100 
secondary colleges. Arrangements include the 
provision of Vocational Education Training in Schools 
(VETiS), Pathways Program (formerly Growth and 
Pathways) and Victorian Certificate of Applied 
Learning (VCAL) programs. These programs are 
provided both at Box Hill Institute and within the 
school environment. The Institute also has a unique 
relationship with the Whitehorse Pathways Alliance, 
creating affiliations between Box Hill Institute and 
schools within and around the City of Whitehorse.

Community Partnerships
Box Hill Institute has a strong commitment to the 
eastern suburbs of Melbourne and, as part of its 
corporate citizenship agenda, works with a number of 
community-based organisations.

In 2012, the Institute continued to work closely with 
the Cities of Manningham and Whitehorse, local 
Rotary Club districts and other community partners 
on a range of education and training initiatives.

Box Hill Institute has also facilitated two innovative 
taster programs, ‘Selling Beauty’ and ‘Mechanical 
Minds’ in partnership with Forest Hills Secondary 
College, Vermont Secondary College, the Gateway 
Local Learning and Employment Network, The 
Avenue Neighbourhood House and Whitehorse 
School Focused Youth Services. Both programs 
were very successful, and are a great example of our 
community engagement.

Industry Partnerships
A key to Box Hill Institute’s success is the range of 
its industry partnerships. Box Hill Institute works 
extensively with industry partners to service industry 
training needs and to obtain input into the design of 
course content. During 2012, a significant number 
of new programs were developed in response to 
industry demand. 

The Institute’s alumni program ensures contact is 
kept with students as they progress through their 
careers. During 2012, the Institute’s alumni program 
which ensures contact is kept with students as 
they progress through their careers, grew with 
over 1,300 students joining. This added to the 
Australian established group and contributed to the 
development of the international chapters.
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The outstanding efforts and achievements of Box Hill 
Institute staff and students were recognised through 
a number of prestigious awards during the year. 
These awards recognise the quality in teaching and 
training and are awarded externally by government 
or industry-based associations. They celebrate the 
accomplishments of teams and individuals who 
make up the Box Hill Institute community. They also 
recognise the value and contribution made by our 
students and alumni in a range of different industries. 

a Year oF 
aWards

The goal of Box Hill Institute is to provide an 
environment that encourages and develops the 
leaders of tomorrow. The Institute’s Student of the 
Year Awards Program, which has been running 
for over 15 years, recognises students who have 
demonstrated outstanding achievement in their area 
of study. These awards are recognised by industry 
and help to propel students’ career and employment 
prospects. 

recognition of teams and  
the institute
Victorian Training Awards: Box Hill Institute was awarded Victorian Large State Training 
Provider of the Year for 2012. 

2012 Victorian Certificate of Applied Learning (VCAL) Achievement Awards: 

•	 Winner, VCAL Student Achievement Award – Intermediate – Team.  
Achievement (VCAL Building Students, Charlton Community Project). 

•	 Winner, VCAL Partner Achievement Award – Workplace Learning (VCAL Peer Activity 
Leadership Program). 

Winner: eLearning Excellence Awards – Accredited eLearning – Mobility in Education – 
Hand Tools for Hand Devices (eLearning project delivered by Blended eLearning Solutions 
and Building and Furniture Studies teams). 

Premier’s Sustainability Awards 2012 – Tertiary Education category: Box Hill Institute 
and Yarra Valley Water Training Partnership. 

2012 Learn Local Awards, Finalists: 

•	 CAE’s Employabilit-e Project.

•	 SPLICE – Succeed; Participate; Learn; Imagine; Create; Empower Program. 

Rotary Community Service Awards: Institute nominated for partnerships with community 
groups Alkira Community Services and the Special Olympics Organisation. 

 

alumni
2012 Victorian Training Awards: Victorian Apprentice of the Year Award – Finalist,  
Micahel Bruns (Certificate III in Electrotechnology Electrician).
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industry recognition of students
Melbourne International Flower Show – Silver medal winner for best floral installation.

National World Skills Competition, Floristy category: Gold medal winner, Dane Robinson.

The Les Toques Blanches Award of Excellence Culinary Competition:

•	 Best First Year Apprentice: Kristee Muddyman.

•	 Bronze Medal: Sarah Kaler.

Victorian TAFE Barista Competition: 

•	 Gold medal winner: Ben Flores.

•	 Silver medal winner: Gian-Franco Doberti.

IKEA Design Award Competition: Six Interior Design & Decorating students were finalists.

Design Institute of Australia’s Graduate of the Year Awards - Interior Design and 
Decoration category: Second place, Sean Oldfield. 

Australian Fashion awards (TAFE section): 

•	 Race Wear category: Winner, Frank Bonacci.

•	 Sustainability category: Winner, Ashleigh Moffatt.

•	 Race Wear category: Third place, Lisa Adams.

Diana Ferrari Little Black Dress competition: Winner, Cathy Nguyen.

National Electrical Contractors Association (NECA) - Apprentice of the Year awards: 
Electrical Apprentice of the Year for Domestic/Commercial Award, Roland Hill. 

Premier Awards - Equine VETiS students, ANZLAA Student Award – Animal Technology. 

National Campus Band Competition: Finalists, ‘Language of the Birds’ awarded second place. 

institute student awards
•	 Box Hill Institute and Rotary Club of Box Hill 2012 Vocational Student of the Year: 

Julian Murphy, Diploma of Sport (Athlete Support Services).  

•	 Rotary Club of Box Hill 2012 Apprentice of the Year: 
Joshua Whiting, Certificate III in Refrigeration and Air-Conditioning. 

•	 Rotary Club of Box Hill Achievement Award:  
Donna Tomlinson, Certificate IV in Business. 

•	 Alan Broadhead Apprentice of the Year Awards:  
Elise O’Neill. Certificate III in Hairdressing (first year category).  
Jessica Sutherland, Certificate III in Hairdressing (second year category).

•	 2012 Pathways/VET in Schools Award (inaugural award): 
Chloe Barr, Certificate III in Community Services.

external awards overseas
Vietnamese National Barista Championship Competition, Vietnam: Awarded fourth 
place for top Barista, Nguyen Van Hue.

Australia-Pacific Technical College (APTC) students won 25 Patisserie and Cookery awards 
(including five Gold medals) at the Salon Culinaire held in Fiji. Three former APTC students 
also took out three Gold medals in the same competition.
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2012 has certainly been a big year of change. 
The Institute has faced complex times in a fiscally 
challenging environment with significant reductions in 
government funding subsidies across the TAFE sector. 

Institute management and staff have worked 
arduously to meet these challenges, cooperate with 
government plans for the sector, grasp opportunities 
and at the same time have continued to focus on our 
learners and clients and deliver high-quality training 
programs and services. It has been a testament to 
the staff of the Institute that in such a challenging 
and unsettling period, levels of learner and staff 
satisfaction have been maintained at a high level.

I am very pleased that the Institute’s strengths have 
been recognised once again by being awarded the 
Victorian Large Training Provider of the Year for 2012 
at the Victorian State Training Awards. This award 
is presented to a registered training organisation 
that demonstrates outstanding achievements in 
all aspects of its delivery of vocational education 
of training. The Institute’s achievement reflects the 
dedication and commitment of Institute staff and 
also recognises the strength of the its alliances and 
partnerships with stakeholders in the community, 
industry and internationally.

In 2012, the Board continued to ensure that Box Hill 
Institute offered a benchmark in good governance by 
focussing on its strategic role and risk management 
role and the positioning of the Institute within a rapidly 
evolving education and training environment. 

With the addition of CAE and Box Hill Institute 
Singapore this year, the Board’s governance oversight 
now encompasses the ‘Box Hill Institute Group’, 
and has reviewed and strengthened its governance 
policies and procedures to take this into account. 

During the year, the work of the Board focussed on: 

•	 The development of the organisation’s new Strategic 
Plan: 2013 – 2017. The new Strategic Plan centres 
on meeting the individual needs of our learners, 
strategic alliances with industry and providing 
customised workplace solutions for industry and 
enterprise clients, enhancing our position as a global 
educator; and strengthening our commitment to 
adult learning and our community. 

chair’s report
On behalf of the Board, I am pleased to 
present Box Hill Institute’s 2012 Annual Report. 
This report reflects the Institute’s strategic 
initiatives, strong financial management and 
key operational highlights. 

•	 Working with Institute CEO, John Maddock, to 
ensure that the impact of the government funding 
and subsidy changes, which represented a $28m 
reduction in revenue to the Institute, was minimised 
for our learners and staff. 

•	 Working with State Government on a number of 
changes to the governance arrangements for TAFE 
and Adult Education Institutes.

2012 was also the fifth and last year of the previous 
Strategic Plan. Upon reflection, Box Hill Institute is 
now a much larger and more complex organisation 
than it was five years ago, delivering a much broader 
and more diverse range of products and services. 

We have successfully achieved the majority of our 
strategic goals and I would like to briefly make 
mention of some of the highlights: 

•	 Box Hill Institute formalised an unprecedented new 
relationship with the Centre for Adult Education 
(CAE). This partnership has created a unique 
organisation and has enabled an unparalleled focus 
on adult education and life-long learning across the 
adult education spectrum. 

•	 The Institute increased its presence both nationally 
and internationally. This included establishing  
Box Hill Institute Singapore as a separate, wholly 
owned entity of the Institute.

•	 The Institute has also been successful in achieving 
accreditation under several training-based 
registrations, across multiple jurisdictions. 

•	 The successful development and implementation 
of the Applied Vocational Study Skills Program, 
which provides students with additional teaching 
support and resources to support them in building 
their reading, writing and maths skills required to be 
successful in their enrolled vocational course and 
future employment or study.

•	 The development and launch of a range of 
innovative blended learning projects which enhance 
our teaching practice and provide more flexible 
options for learners. 

•	 The fostering of successful partnerships with key 
universities and industry groups providing more 
pathway options and opportunities for our learners. 
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•	 The successful bid to implement the largest AusAid 
contract for education in Australia through the 
Australian-Pacific Technical College (APTC) project 
which delivers skills and qualifications throughout 
the Pacific Island nations.

Productive partnerships continue to be the 
cornerstone of the work of the Institute. Utilising and 
building on our strong industry links and networks 
to the benefit of the Institute is paramount to our 
ongoing success. 

Box Hill Institute continues to develop relationships 
with individual Rotary Clubs within District 9810 to 
provide support and assist with fundraising. I would 
like to acknowledge the support these Rotary Clubs 
provide by sponsoring our Vocational and Apprentice 
of the Year awards.

The year 2012 has been both a year of consolidation 
and also one of great reflection on the future direction 
that the Board believes the Institute needs to follow 
to ensure that we are creating the right courses and 
pathways for our current and future students both in 
Australia and overseas. 

The year ahead will present new challenges and 
opportunities as well as a need for continuing 
flexibility and the ability to adapt quickly to our  
ever-changing market conditions. The Board will 
continue to monitor, support and provide direction on 
the achievement of our goals and strategies. 

The commitment demonstrated by our Board  
has been vital to our success and it has been a 
pleasure to work with such a well informed and 
forward-thinking group. 

I would like to thank our Board members Philip 
Belcher, Noelene Duff, Bruce Thompson, Glen 
Walker, Helen Buckingham, Ian Hind, Janet Compton, 
Greg Malone, Sasha Feldman, Michael Zangmeister 
and John Maddock for the considerable knowledge 
and expertise they have brought to the Board and 
their continued devotion of time and effort on behalf 
of the success of the Institute. 

In conclusion, I would like to extend my thanks and 
appreciation to our executives, our management 
team, and all of the staff of the Institute for their 
ongoing commitment, enthusiasm and hard work.

Ms Elizabeth White  
Chair 

28 February 2013
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The Institute achieved great success by winning 
the prestigious award for Victorian Large Training 
Provider of the Year 2012. This achievement reflected 
our ability to build effective working partnerships 
within the sector, as well as our strong capability 
of delivering high-quality vocational education and 
training services. It also recognised the work of the 
Institute’s staff, and their ability to be innovative in the 
programs and services that are delivered to learners 
and industry clients. It is this work that underpins our 
strong reputation both nationally and internationally. 
This recognition is an exceptional achievement that all 
within the Institute community should be proud of. 

During the year, we made the difficult decision to 
cease the delivery of 88 of our courses, which were 
no longer viable given changes in demand under the 
new market conditions. The Institute also identified 
a further 50 courses which were regarded as being 
at risk. This was due to changes within the TAFE 
environment which were announced in the State 
Budget. Funding reductions to the Institute in the May 
budget, commencing as at 1 July 2012, announced 
with no prior consultation, totalled $24m in a full year.
This was in addition to the announcement of a $4m 
funding cut in late 2011. These measures included:

•	 The removal of the ‘full service provider 
supplementation’ which included past  
enterprise bargaining agreement increases as 
approved by government;

•	 The removal of the community service obligation 
component of the price paid per student contact 
hour, thus funding TAFE institutes at the same rate 
as private providers;

•	 No funding for maintenance;

•	 No funding for future enterprise bargaining 
agreement increases in wage levels; and

•	 Revised funding rates for all government subsidised 
courses through the introduction of various bands 
at which differential prices were paid.

ceo’s report
2012 was a successful year for Box Hill Institute, 
with many challenges and opportunities 
presented to not only us, but to all tertiary 
education providers. 

This placed enormous pressure on the Board, 
Institute management and staff. It led to a complete 
review of course offerings and pricing policies. Above 
all however, we were adamant that in meeting these 
reductions, the quality of Box Hill Institute’s offerings 
was paramount and would not be compromised.

It would be remiss of me not to mention and thank 
the many staff that have left our organisation during 
the year. We have said “goodbye” to staff members 
who have many years of experience and knowledge 
for which our organisation is extremely thankful.

While we are extremely grateful for the contributions 
these staff have made, it is with regret that 
resourcing cuts have in many cases prompted these 
departures. I appreciate the sensitive way in which 
our management and staff have worked through this 
change management process. 

Despite the challenges of the year, we have continued 
to focus and build on our successes, particularly in 
relation to the partnership we have with the Centre 
for Adult Education (CAE). We are now working 
collaboratively on many joint ventures, course 
offerings and sharing campus locations. 

Other highlights have included:

•	 The implementation of innovative blended 
eLearning initiatives. This included the introduction 
of iBooks as a new way to engage students in their 
learning. The Institute also implemented a project 
called ‘Accredited eLearning Mobility in Education’ 
for Hand Tools for Hand Devices - a mobile learning 
project which aims to support flexible; work 
focussed delivery for apprentice learners. 

•	 The successful development and implementation of 
the Applied Vocational Study Skills Program. This 
is a program that provides additional support and 
resources to students to reach their full potential 
within their studies. 

•	 With regard to new course offerings, we now offer 
a Bachelor of Early Childhood (Education and Care) 
and Bachelor of Commerce. Several new higher 
education courses are on track for submission to 
TESQA including Bachelors of Library Studies,  
Bio-security, Fashion Merchandising and 
Community Services. 
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The formation of partnerships have been the focus 
for the Institute this year. In February, the Institute 
signed a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) with 
Cambridge University English As a Second Language 
(ESL) for the Occupational English Test which we 
hope will open doors to a much broader relationship 
in the future.

Another partnership which has flourished is the 
relationship with the Air-conditioning and Mechanical 
Contractors Association (AMCA), who have been 
working with us to establish a Centre of Excellence 
in Refrigeration and Climate Control in the Integrated 
Technology Hub facility currently in development.

We were delighted to welcome VMware as an 
academy within the Institute delivering training in 
computer virtualization and cloud infrastructure. 

We also renewed and signed a Memorandum of 
Understanding with Australian Catholic University 
(ACU) which will assist our students gain places with 
them through pathway arrangements. 

This year, the Institute has placed particular emphasis 
on diversifying its revenue base. This has been 
achieved through a number of commercial projects 
which included the training provided in one of the 
largest AusAid projects through the Australian-Pacific 
Technical College, delivering Australian qualifications 
to Pacific Islanders. The successful consortium in this 
contract included Box Hill Institute, Sunshine Coast 
Institute of TAFE and GRM International.

As an organisation, we continue to reinvent ourselves, 
and transition periods in times of change are guided 
by our vision and goals. These periods have required 
us to revisit our vision and goals and work towards a 
new Strategic Plan for our future. While 2012 was a 
challenging year it is pleasing that we achieved all of 
our key targets. I am sure that with continued good 
governance through our Board, and with the spirit of 
innovation and willingness to adapt from our staff, we 
will continue to achieve in 2013 and beyond.

In closing, I would like to thank our Board members 
for the commitment and hard work they have given 
us again this year, and not only for the considerable 
value they offer at board and committee meetings, 
but for the many additional duties they perform 
representing the Institute at a range of events. I would 
like to make special mention of our Chair, Elizabeth 
White, for her valuable contribution during the year. 

I have also been very proud of our staff for their 
commitment and resourcefulness in ensuring that we 
continue to provide the quality education and training 
services we are renowned for. 

Mr John Maddock 
Chief Executive Officer 

28 February 2013 
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Box Hill Institute works extensively with Industry Skills Councils to ascertain how best to 
prepare students for work in particular industries. There are eleven national industry skills 
councils that cover the skill needs of Australian industry. 

Industry Skills Councils are well connected to their stakeholders, providing leadership 
in workforce development, developing training to meet industry needs and providing 
intelligence on industry requirements. 

connectinG 
With industrY

Innovation and 
Business Skills
In 2012, Box Hill Institute:

•	 Commenced the development 
of two new higher education 
programs, the Masters in 
Network Security and the 
Bachelor of Library and 
Information Management. The 
programs build on the solid 
foundation of the Institute’s 
training capability in these two 
industry areas. These new 
programs have received strong 
support from leading industry 
bodies and academics.

•	 Became the State’s first VMware 
Regional Academy. VMware and 
Box Hill Institute joined forces 
to launch this training program, 
which provides the Institute 
with the most comprehensive 
virtualization training capability 
across the TAFE and university 
sectors outside the United States.

•	 Commenced the development 
of the first Citrix Academy in 
Australia in May. The Institute was 
targeted by Citrix due to its current 
lead Cisco and VMware academy 
status in Australia, with the aim 
to establish a similar presence 
for Citrix in the region. The pilot 
training program commenced 
delivery in early November.

•	 Was awarded funding to identify 
how industry can optimise 
savings through the adoption 
of the National Broadband 
Network (NBN). Two industry 
groups were targeted - 
Electronic Security and Building 
Management Systems. The 
Institute established industry 
reference groups with leading 
companies in these sectors 
to identify key emerging skills 
gaps, as well as supporting 
the development of training 

programs and future training 
package updates. 

•	 Sponsored the 2012 iAwards in 
the category of e-Government. 
The iAwards are the preeminent 
National ICT awards recognising 
excellence in the industry, and are 
delivered in conjunction with the 
Australian Information Industry 
Association (AIIA), the Australian 
Computer Society (ACS) and the 
Pearcey Foundation.

•	 Facilitated vocational Accounting 
and Bookkeeping students 
to gain work placement in 
conjunction with the CPA’s 
Eastern Suburbs Women group. 

Manufacturing Skills
In 2012, Box Hill Institute: 

•	 Worked to develop and deliver 
industry specific training for the 
air-conditioning and mechanical 
sector, in close partnership with 
the Air-conditioning Mechanical 
Services Contractors 
Association (AMCA). 

•	 Established a partnership with 
the Electrical Telecommunications 
and Renewable Energy 
Contractors (ETREC), where 
industry representatives work 
closely with the Institute to provide 
services and training programs to 
further develop the skills required 
for the industry in the future. The 
Department of Business and 
Innovation has endorsed the 
partnership with ETREC. 

•	 Worked with the National Electrical 
Contractors Association (NECA) 
to identify industry requirements 
for training delivery, and to develop 
resources for training.

•	 Worked closely with the industry 
regulator, Energy Safe Victoria, 
to identify training needs, 
and develop and conduct 
assessments on their behalf. 

•	 Developed strong relationships 
with peak bodies and 
organisations in the Extractive 
Industry. The Institute is a 
preferred provider for the Institute 
of Quarrying Australia (IQA) 
and the Construction Materials 
Processors Association (CMPA) 
and delivers training and services 
to quarries including to Boral 
Resources Ltd, Holcim, Mawsons 
and Conundrum Holdings. 

•	 Hosted industry functions in 
relation to the promotion of the 
Heavy Vehicle Mobile Equipment 
and Light Vehicle training programs. 

•	 Recorded attendance at 
industry-led forums covering the 
manufacturing sector. 

•	 Worked closely with Science 
Industry Australia to deliver 
three workshops for the Annual 
Conference of the Australian 
Laboratory Managers Association. 
The workshops were delivered 
by key industry experts and 
included Lean Manufacturing, 
Human Resources and Risk 
Management.

Energy Skills
In 2012, Box Hill Institute:

•	 Worked with the industry skills 
council, E-OZ, on an apprentice 
progression and retention project. 
The project aims to improve the 
efficiency and productivity of 
the training system and improve 
apprentice retention levels. 

•	 Was selected as one of six Victorian 
metropolitan training providers 
to partner in a program with 
the Industry Skills Council, 
which aims to change the 
culture of electrical training 
across Australia. It used the 
Electrotechnology Electrician 
qualification as a pilot program. The 
aim is to produce a sustainable 
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and flexible competency-based 
progression system, with a 
focus on quality outcomes and 
national consistency. 

•	 Worked closely with the plant 
supervisor and the employees at 
the ESSO Plant at Longford to 
train approximately 60 workers 
through a comprehensive 
Recognition of Prior Learning 
process, which delivered both 
the Certificate IV and Diploma in 
Process Plant Technology. 

Construction and 
Property Services 
Industry Skills
In 2012, Box Hill Institute: 

•	 Held industry forums with 
local employers, professional 
associations, unions and group 
training organisations. The 
purpose of these forums was to 
ensure training and assessment 
services are meeting the needs 
of enterprises and the forums 
will continue into 2013. The 
vocational areas included 
plumbing, furnishings, carpentry, 
off-site construction and building.

Community Services 
and Health Industry 
Skills
In 2012, Box Hill Institute: 

•	 Formed a Course Advisory 
Committee comprising key 
stakeholders from the Early 
Childhood profession to develop 
a Graduate Diploma of Early 
Childhood Teaching.

•	 Collaborated with our strategic 
partners - Eastern Health, 
Epworth Eastern and Deakin 

University by utilising our 
simulation centre in the Nursing 
Skills Centre of Excellence to 
conduct pre-clinical trials of a 
patented medical device.

•	 Reconfirmed our MOU with 
the Eastern Ranges General 
Practitioners Association to 
provide clinical placements for 
allied health learners.

•	 Worked with Uniting Aged 
Care on the research to pilot 
a program in their home and 
community care centres.

Service Industry Skills
In 2012, Box Hill Institute: 

•	 In partnership with Interflora 
the Diploma of Floral Design 
was introduced. The Institute 
was the first Registered Training 
Organisation in Australia to 
deliver the Diploma.

•	 Was represented at the Floristry 
World Skills event. A Floristry 
learner won and will represent 
Australia in 2013.

•	 Launched an authenticated 
workplace, The Aveda Day Spa, 
to ensure that the Institute’s 
Diploma in Beauty Therapy (Spa) 
graduates are work-ready.

•	 Hospitality and cookery students 
and staff worked with the City 
of Manningham on the World’s 
Longest Lunch event in Warrandyte.

Creative Industries 
Skills
In 2012, Box Hill Institute:

•	 Prepared a submission to the 
Tertiary Education Quality and 
Standards Agency (TEQSA) for 
new qualifications - Bachelor of 

Fashion Merchandising,  
and the Associate Degree in 
Fashion Merchandising, plus 
renewal of accreditation for the 
Bachelor of Applied Business in 
Music Industry. 

•	 Established a partnership with 
Diana Ferrari to implement an 
innovative fashion initiative. A 
‘Little Black Dress’ competition 
was developed as a result of 
the partnership. It provided the 
opportunity for up and coming 
fashion designers, studying the 
Bachelor of Fashion, to design a 
dress that the retail outlet would 
produce as part of its range. 

•	 Offered scholarships to three 
students studying the Certificate 
IV in Screen and Media 
(Television) qualification. This is 
part of an ongoing scholarship 
program offered by Network Ten 
and Box Hill Institute.

Agri-Food Industry 
Skills
In 2012, Box Hill Institute:

•	 Worked with Parks Victoria to 
develop a training manual and 
related course to instruct their 
staff in first aid for native wildlife.  

•	 Facilitated 10 animal sciences 
students to complete a study 
tour, which included visiting 
facilities across the UK, Scotland 
and Ireland. Students visited 
veterinarian training facilities, 
companion animal and wildlife 
rescue facilities, research 
facilities and horse breeding 
farms. They also attended 
the British Veterinary Nurses 
Association Congress. 

0 1,000,000 2,000,000 3,000,000 4,000,000 5,000,000

Agri-Food Industry Skills Council

Community Services and Health Industry Skills Council

Construction and Property Services Industry Skills Council

ElectroComms and EnergyUtilities Industry Skills Council Ltd

Forestry, Wood, Paper and Timber Products Industry Skills Council

Government and Community Safety Industry Skills Council

Innovation and Business Industry Skills Council

Manufacturing Industry Skills Council

None (ACFE)

None (Undefined Sector)

Services Industry Skills Council

SkillsDMC National Industry Skills Council

Transport and Logistics Industry Skills Council

GRAND TOTALGOVERNMENTCOMMERCIAL

STUDENT CONTACT HOURS

Chart A: 2012 Government Profile Delivery by National Industry Skills Council
Chart A depicts the total delivery that aligns with national industry skills council responsibility. The Industry Skills Councils that 
are the most significant, in terms of student Contact Hour delivery are Innovation and Business Skills, Community Services 
and Health, Service Skills and Manufacturing.
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A culture of community spirit underpins the Institute’s relationships with business, community 
and individual clients. 

The Institute’s corporate values recognise the importance of making a positive impact within 
the community. Box Hill Institute collaborates with the community to improve education and 
employment outcomes, with a particular emphasis on ensuring equity and access for all. 

The Institute supports active involvement in community issues and causes. 

connectinG  
With communitY

Know One, Teach One
The Institute continued to support 
KOTO (Know One, Teach One) in 
Vietnam to train disadvantaged 
youth for the hospitality industry. 
KOTO is a not-for-profit hospitality 
training organisation that has 
trained approximately 400 
disadvantaged Vietnamese youths 
in Hanoi over the past 10 years. 

Two graduates from KOTO have 
been awarded scholarships to 
further their studies at the Institute 
in Australia.

Scope and Box Hill 
Institute Internship 
Program
An internship program, 
facilitated by Box Hill Institute 
and SCOPE, was introduced 
during the year. Events students 
completed internships at the 
organisation, and gained valuable 
events workplace experience 
through responsibility for major 
components of the SCOPE ‘See Me 
September’ Ball Fundraising event, 
and the ‘Walk with ME’ events.

The program provided significant 
benefits to SCOPE, including 
providing valuable human 
resources for the not-for-profit 
organisation for some of their 
key fund raising activities, as well 
as the opportunity to engage a 
younger audience, and increase 
awareness of SCOPE activities to 
this younger demographic  
of interns. 

Rotary Community 
Service Awards
The Institute was nominated by 
two partner organisations for 
awards at the Rotary Community 
Service Awards. Alkira Community 
Services nominated the Institute 
as a corporate and business 
partner, in recognition of the 
support provided to Alkira, 
through a program run with  
sports students who provide 
activities for clients, and assist 
the marketing efforts for a major 
fundraising activity. 

In addition, the Special  
Olympics organisation  
nominated the Institute for its 
ongoing efforts in supporting their 
fundraising activities. 

Work Experience 
Programs
Box Hill Institute is committed 
to providing work placement 
programs that deliver tangible 
outcomes to the community. The 
following are some examples of 
programs that took place: 

•	 Box Hill Institute’s business 
programs students joined with 
Deakin University business 
students to take part in the 
Whitehorse City Council’s 
Whitehorse Tertiary Business 
Skills Program – BizLinx. 
The Institute’s students were 
required to work in a simulated 
business environment to 
organise and run an event.

•	 Students studying the Diploma 
of Event Management 
participated in a valuable 
volunteer experience at the 
National Trust Australia’s 
(Victoria) Ripponlea House & 
Gardens Teddy Bear’s Picnic.

•	 Vocational Accounting and 
Bookkeeping students gained 
work placement, in conjunction 
with the organisation CPA  
and its Eastern Suburbs 
Women group.
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Community Initiatives
Box Hill Institute participated in 
a number of community related 
activities. These included:

•	 On Australia Day, teachers from 
the Certificate IV in Employment 
Course for Skilled Professional 
Migrants organised a picnic 
in Box Hill Gardens for former 
students, their families and 
friends.  This was the third 
Australia Day picnic and  
103 people came along to 
share food, chat with old friends 
and make new connections. 

•	 Over 200 local and international 
students, along with Institute 
staff, joined together at the 
Nelson Campus to celebrate 
Harmony Day with a feast of 
international food  
and activities.  

Student and Staff 
Fundraising Initiatives
A number of fundraising initiatives 
were run by students. These 
included: 

•	 Students from Sport and 
Fitness actively engaged 
in many community and 
commercial events,  
and fundraising for their 
preferred charity.

•	 Event Management students 
held a Comedy and Trivia Night 
raising funds for SCOPE.

•	 Staff from the Centre for 
Hospitality and Tourism 
Studies participated in the Pink 
Breakfast to raise funds for the 
Olivia Newton John Cancer and 
Wellness Centre.

Sponsored Community 
Events
Box Hill Institute sponsored 
community events during the year. 
These included: 

•	 The World’s Longest Lunch 
event, which was hosted by 
Manningham City Council. 
The event was held as part 
of the Melbourne Food and 
Wine Festival and attended by 
150 people. Box Hill Institute 
hospitality students worked 
and provided services at the 
event. The Chinese New Year 
Festival held in January, was 
hosted by the Asian Business 
Association, in partnership with 
the Whitehorse CIty Council.

Whitehorse Business 
Group
To support and maintain a close 
connection with local business, 
Box Hill Institute continued to 
sponsor the Whitehorse Business 
Group. This Group represents 
the interests of the local business 
community and aims to assist the 
development of business initiatives 
within the City of Whitehorse. 
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proGress aGainst 
the institute’s 
strateGic plan
leaders in teaching and training
Platform Objective
Box Hill Institute will provide an applied learning environment characterised by innovation, 
quality and teaching excellence that enables students to achieve employment goals and 
acquire skills, knowledge and attributes relevant to industry needs in the global economy.

Other Achievements
In 2012, Box Hill Institute:

•	 Achieved renewal of Delegated 
Authority (Scope of Registration 
and Self Accreditation) with the 
Australian Skills Qualification 
Authority (ASQA).

•	 Received Certified Practicing 
Accountant (CPA) accreditation 
for the Bachelor of Commerce, 
and Tertiary Education Quality 
and Standards Agency 
registration to deliver the first 
Box Hill Institute degree at the 
city campus.

•	 Launched the Student Dash 
Board, as a new part of the 
Global Positioning Program 
for student orientation and 
induction. In this program, 
learners create an individual 
learning plan including their 
career goals and learning style 
preferences. It provides a 
SWOT analysis of an individual’s 
digital literacy and preferred 
learning style.

•	 Supported over 2,500 students 
to complete language and 
literacy assessments through 
the Applied Vocational Studies 
Skills program.

The Institute focussed on improving retention for students through an integrated 
approach, including language and literacy support; assessment of individual 
learning styles and digital literacy through an innovative online tool – the Global 
Positioning Program.

•	 Won the eLearning Excellence 
Award for the ‘Accredited 
eLearning mobility in Education’ 
for Hand Tools for Hand 
Devices. This mobile learning 
program will support flexible; 
work focussed delivery for 
apprentices.

•	 Launched the Eco 360 video 
collaboration training system 
which supports visual learners.

•	 Enrolled the first cohort 
of students in the newly 
accredited Bachelor of 
Early Childhood Education 
(Education and Care).

•	 Successfully completed the 
first Vocational Education and 
Training (VET) funded European 
Union (EU) cooperation project 
for Hospitality and Tourism.

•	 Conducted the 2012 Teaching 
and Learning symposium 
‘Supporting Learner Success’, 
with over 300 Box Hill Institute 
and Centre for Adult Education 
staff participating. Keynote 
speakers included the Reverend 
Tim Costello, CEO World 
Vision and Professor Sue Willis, 
Pro Vice-Chancellor (Social 
Inclusion) and Interim Pro 
Vice-Chancellor (Learning and 
Teaching) Monash University.

•	 Signed a new Memoranda of 
Understanding with Australian 
Catholic University for pathways 
for VET students; Dania 
University in Denmark for 
architectural drafting students; 
and ITE Singapore for our 
global education programs.

•	 Completed Community of 
Practice in Key Concepts 
in Higher Education. This 
workshop analysed current 
literature around principles of 
higher education and critically 
discussed relevant policies 
within this context.

•	 Supported 12 staff to  
complete the inaugural 
Graduate Certificate in Tertiary 
Teaching in collaboration with 
Melbourne University.
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leaders in innovation
Platform Objective
Box Hill Institute will be differentiated from its competitors by its innovative products,  
services and training delivery methodologies and its linkages with industry. 

Worked on the development of a new strategic plan for the Institute. The plan sets 
the direction from 2013 – 2017, with a focus on building on the strength of our 
partnerships and continuing to deliver quality of education and training delivery. 

Other Achievements
In 2012, Box Hill Institute: 

•	 Incorporated blended learning 
methods into more than 40% 
of all course delivery to provide 
innovative approaches to 
learning. This exceeded the 
Institute’s internal target of 20%.

•	 Provided opportunities 
for students to showcase 
their talents. This included 
a ‘Musication’ concert 
performed by music students, a 
‘Momentum’ dance concert, as 

well as exhibitions to showcase 
students talents, in areas such 
as textile and jewellery design. 

•	 Facilitated a number of unique 
and engaging competitions to 
engage our students within their 
courses and industries. Some 
examples included an IKEA 
competition for Interior Design 
and Decoration students, a 
Diana Ferrari ‘Little Black Dress 
Competition’ for fashion design 
students; and a 16-Bar Loop 
competition for music students. 

•	 Implemented unique training 
programs to industry partners. 
For example, Yarra Valley Water 
and Box Hill Institute partnered to 
develop and deliver the Diploma 
of Sustainable Operations – the 
first of its kind in Victoria. This 
nationally accredited course has 
been designed in consultation 
with industry. It has been designed 
for those currently working in 
operational and management roles 
requiring expertise in environmental 
sustainability. This new program 
was a finalist in the Premier’s 
Sustainability Awards.

leaders globally
Platform Objective
Box Hill Institute will be acknowledged as Australia’s number one provider of education and 
training products and services internationally, and will prepare its students and employees to 
participate in a global economy. 

The Australian Pacific Technical College (APTC) experienced substantial growth in 2012 
with new course offerings in areas such as Disability, Aged Care and Youth Work. 

Other Achievements
In 2012, Box Hill Institute: 

•	 Forged new global partnerships 
for transnational delivery, 
and New Letters of Intent 
and Memorandums of 
Understanding were signed with 
a number of institutions. 

•	 Welcomed the announcement 
of a new APTC campus in the 
Solomon Islands that will open 
to students in 2013.

•	 Was awarded the Contract for 
Phase 3 of the ‘Vanuatu Technical 
and Vocational Education and 
Training Sector Strengthening 
Program’ with AusAID. 

•	 Was contracted by Venetian 
Macau Limited to provide 
Project Manager support 
to manage the pre-opening 
training project of their extension 
property - Sands Cotai Central 
- Phase 1.

•	 Was appointed by the Singapore 
Workforce Development Agency 
as a new Continuous Education 
and Training (CET) Centre 
specialising in tourism/food and 
beverage industry courses. 

•	 Signed an agreement with 
University of Cambridge ESOL 
Examinations (Cambridge ESOL) 
to work towards the delivery of 
language assessment services 

in Australia and around the 
world. The alliance aims to 
further advance the delivery 
of testing and assessment 
services in Australia and globally, 
including without limitation, 
a strategic collaboration for 
delivery and assessment of the 
Occupational English Test.

•	 Continued to host students  
from over 50 countries at  
Box Hill Institute.

•	 Signed a Memorandum of 
Understanding with  
ITE Singapore to support  
our student and staff  
global experience. 
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leaders in relationships 
Platform Objective
Box Hill Institute will have productive, collaborative, beneficial relationships with industry, 
enterprises, community, education and government that enhance business development and 
other opportunities for staff and students.

Other Achievements
In 2012, Box Hill Institute: 

•	 Became the first VM Ware 
Regional Academy in Australia, 
recognising our leadership in 
the area of Virtualization and 
Cloud computing. This has 
established the Institute as 
the benchmark for vocational 
training in this exciting new 
technology, ensuring students 
gain the skills necessary to 
enter this dynamic and highly 
rewarding industry sector.

•	 Entered into an agreement 
with Uniting Voice Childcare 
Union, in partnership with 
Bendigo Regional Institute 
of TAFE (BRIT), to support 
the recognition of employees 
who have worked in the early 

The Minister for Higher Education and Skills formally launched the relationship 
between the Air-conditioning & Manufacturing Contractors Association (AMCA) 
and the Institute. The two bodies have established an industry roundtable on 
refrigeration and climate control to determine the training needs of the industry.  

childhood industry for a number 
of years, but have no formal 
qualifications. The ‘Big Steps’ 
Rapid Recognition program 
provided workers with the 
opportunity to be assessed 
through the Recognition of Prior 
Learning process, which may 
lead to either the Certificate III 
in Children’s Services or the 
Diploma of Children’s Services. 

•	 Strengthened its link with the 
Environmental Biotechnology 
CRC by being involved in the 
development and launch of 
targeted training workshops 
for the meat industry, funded 
in part by the Australian 
Meat Processor Corporation, 
and driven by National Meat 
Industry Training Advisory 
Council (Mintrac).

•	 Expanded programs in Pulp 
and Paper training, particularly 
in the area of quality assurance 
with the Certificate IV in Training 
and Assessment (TAE) being 
rolled out across all mills in 
Victoria and South Australia.

•	 Continued to grow its capacity 
in training programs for the 
extractive industry, with both 
local and interstate training 
being delivered. For Certificate 
IV in Surface Operations, 
training programs ran in 
Queensland, New South 
Wales and Victoria. For the 
Diploma of Surface Operations 
Management qualification, 
training was delivered in New 
South Wales and Victoria.
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managing students and customers
Platform Objective
Box Hill Institute will provide exemplary programs, customer service and support to its 
students and customers locally, nationally and internationally. 

Developed a range of innovative delivery support methods to assist students in a 
range of settings, through the Applied Vocational Study Support (AVSS) program. 
This involved providing services to students from all levels, from Certificate I to 
Bachelor degrees. Support services are now offered in classrooms, libraries, by 
email and phone. 

Other Achievements
In 2012, Box Hill Institute: 

•	 Formally opened the 
Information Shop on the corner 
of Flinders Lane and Degraves 
Street in the CBD. The first 
official event was held on in 
August to launch ELICOS in 
the city, with Box Hill Institute 
international agents.

•	 Opened the new Customer 
Service Kiosk, located in the 
area between Buildings E3  
and E4 on the Elgar Campus. 
This new facility is staffed 
to answer both domestic 
and international enquiries, 
and has been designed to 
accommodate up to three staff 
managing general directional 
and program enquiries.

•	 Formally recognised 
accomplished students in 
vocational and apprenticeship 
categories at two annual 
‘Student of the Year’ events.

•	 Implemented the Peer Activity 
Leadership (PAL) Program. 
In this program, Victorian 
Certificate of Applied Learning 
(VCAL) students ran  
problem-solving activity 
sessions for young students at 
partnering primary schools. 

•	 Successfully applied to the 
Department of Education, 
Employment and Workplace 
Relations for Endeavour Study 
Tours funding. This funding was 
granted for tours to the United 
Kingdom/Ireland for Animal 
Science students; and United 
Kingdom/Europe for Fashion 
students. This resulted in 23 
students and four teaching  
staff participating in these  
study tours.

•	 Sent seven students to the 
Netherlands and Scotland for 
semester exchanges to partner 
colleges, as part of the EU-AUS 
Joint Cooperation Mobility 
Project. During the exchange 
the students completed  
units from the Vocational 
Graduate Certificate in Working 
Globally qualification. 

•	 Facilitated a comprehensive 
support program for 
international students to 
encourage a sense of inclusion 
in the Institute and local 
community. This included two 
weekend camps and a party 
to farewell the international 
students leaving the Institute.  
A wide range of day excursions 
were offered to international 
students including a ‘Picnic  
at Hanging Rock’, a State 
Library tour and a snow trip to 
Lake Mountain. 

•	 Implemented a number of 
initiatives as part of the broader  
VCAL program. This included: 

 • A two-day orientation  
camp for all Intermediate 
VCAL groups; 

 • A wellbeing program 
delivered at AVEO Aged Care 
facilities; and

 • Three VCAL groups formed 
separate clubs to raise funds 
to travel to Wagga Wagga. 
The Trade Aid Camps 
involved students working 
alongside other BlazeAid 
volunteers to help repair flood 
damaged properties. 

•	 Coordinated a range of activities 
through its Student Activities 
Representative Council (SARC), 
including Indigenous Cultural 
Awareness Week.
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managing people 
Platform Objective
Box Hill Institute will engage with its people in a dynamic culture that promotes and 
recognises achievement, enhances organisational capacity to deliver on strategic promises, 
and provides an excellent workplace.

The Institute increased its capability of its teaching workforce through a number 
of programs. This included offering a new range of professional development 
programs to new and existing staff. 

Other Achievements
In 2012, Box Hill Institute: 

•	 Implemented a ‘Management 
Essentials’ program targeting 
key areas of management 
responsibilities including training 
in Occupational Health & Safety, 
Equal Opportunity, Privacy, 
Copyright, Whistleblowers, 
Intellectual Property and Human 
Rights. The training targeted 
the management team across 
the Box Hill Institute Group and 
the responsibilities of managers 
in these areas.

•	 Implemented a change 
management program across 
the Institute which included 
change and transition sessions 
for managers, leading through 
change for managers, dealing 
with change for Senior 
Educators and running 
lunchtime sessions for staff on 
coping with change.

•	 Continued the successful 
People and Organisational 
Development Advisory Group 
(ODAG), which gives employees 
the opportunity to provide their 
views and ideas regarding the 
leadership and management 
of people at the Institute. The 
group implemented a number 
of initiatives including a Senior 
Educator Leadership Toolkit 
program, represented the  
Box Hill Institute Group at  
Box Hill RSL Remembrance 
Day activities, provided 
feedback and suggested 
actions from the staff survey 
results; and initiated a 
Workplace Giving Program that 
will be implemented in 2013.

•	 Developed staff initiatives to 
promote a positive and healthy 
workplace including a wellness 
program, indigenous cultural 
and disability awareness 
training; and workplace 
behaviour. This year also 
saw the trialling of lunchtime 
wellness sessions in maintaining 
health, sleeping well and coping 
with difficult situations.

•	 Funded two Diplomas of 
Vocational Education and 
Training Programs for  
teachers across all centres to 
increase the capability of our 
teaching workforce.

•	 Implemented the Senior 
Educator and Program Leader 
Leadership Toolkit, and offered 
sessions covering topics such 
as Developing Resilience 
and Mental Toughness and 
Managing Conflict. 

•	 Recognised the achievements 
of staff through the Annual Staff 
Achievement and Recognition 
Program (SARP). The program 
acknowledges outstanding 
employees and teams who 
promote increased awareness 
of best practices and strategy, 
and who embody the Institute’s 
vision, mission and values. 
SARP winners are outlined in 
the ‘Year of Awards’ section of 
the Annual Report. 
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managing infrastructure
Platform Objective
Box Hill Institute will have appropriate, safe and environmentally sustainable infrastructure, 
technology and equipment. 

The Institute completed redevelopment work to the new entry of the Elgar Road 
Campus. This capital works project was achieved within budget in April 2012.

Other Achievements
In 2012, Box Hill Institute: 

•	 Commenced construction for 
the Stage 1 of the Integrated 
Technology Hub. 

•	 Refurbished and facilitated an 
equipment upgrade for the 
Whitehorse Campus. Works 
included improving centrally 
managed audio-visual and  
air-conditioning systems. 

•	 Completed refurbishment work 
to Levels 4 and 5 of Elgar 
Campus - Building 3. This work 
involved a complete change to 
the facilities on these two levels 
to maximise the flexibility of the 
spaces to be conducive to new 
methods of learning. 

•	 Refurbished the Melbourne 
CBD campus of the Centre for 
Adult Education (CAE). 

•	 Upgraded its Student 
Management System (SMART), 
the Institute’s main system for 
student management, to meet 
government policy changes. 

•	 Successfully integrated  
Box Hill Institute systems, 
with those of the CAE. These 
projects included: 

 • Networks trust - Allowing 
users to at either campus 
access to log-on at either 
campus by allowing secure 
communications between the 
two networks;

 • HR/Payroll data migration;

 • Short course management 
integration;

 • Email and active directory 
integration;

 • Finance 1 replacement of the 
SUN finance system at CAE; 
and the

 • Skills Victoria Training 
System delivery and financial 
reconciliation system.

•	 Completed a number of 
infrastructure upgrade projects 
including: 

 • Student Networks – Wireless 
and classroom network 
upgrade;

 • Data Centre Server 
Replacements;

 • SMART Hardware and 
System Support; and the

 • Active Directory email 
integration.

managing business performance
Platform Objective
Box Hill Institute will achieve sustainable business growth while maintaining financial viability 
and meeting contractual, legislative and statutory obligations. 

Box Hill Institute continued to respond to the changed market conditions as a result 
of the full implementation of the Victoria Government’s Skills Reform Policy. It also 
responded to the subsequent funding amendments, as announced in May 2012, 
through the ‘Refocusing Vocational Training in Victoria’ policy. 

Other Achievements
In 2012, Box Hill Institute: 

•	 Met the majority of the  
financial targets for the year, 
recording a positive net 
surplus. This was a significant 
achievement in a year of 
uncertainty and reductions in 
State Government funding.

•	 Realigned a number of 
program areas, and facilitated 
adjustment of course delivery 
levels, to meet updated 
demand. This also involved the 
introduction of new courses, 
and the cessation of non-viable 
courses with low demand. This 
has enabled the Institute to 
achieve a viable net surplus and 

working capital targets, despite 
reduced revenue. 

•	 Successfully integrated its 
financial operations with 
those of the Centre for Adult 
Education (CAE).

•	 Met its obligations under  
the Performance and  
Service Agreement with the 
State Government. 
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proGress aGainst 
state and national 
priorities
state 
priorities
2012 was a year of significant 
policy change for the Vocational 
Education and Training (VET) 
system and for Box Hill Institute.

The predominant policy influence 
in 2012 focused around 
the Victorian government’s 
‘Refocusing VET in Victoria’ 
strategy. This policy introduced 
significant changes to the 
VET sector, which impacted 
on the Institute. The policy 
was introduced against a 
background of unsustainable 
State Government increases 
in expenditure on vocational 
education and training, and 
government concerns about 
training in some areas which 
contributed less to employment 
productivity and skill development.

The 2012/13 State Budget 
introduced significant  
reductions in funding for the 
Institute. These included:

•	 The removal of the ‘full service 
provider supplementation’ 
which included past enterprise 
bargaining agreement increases 
as approved by government;

•	 The removal of the community 
service obligation component 
of the price paid per student 
contact hour, thus funding TAFE 
institutes at the same rate as 
private providers;

•	 No funding for maintenance;

•	 No funding of future enterprise 
bargaining agreement increases 
in wage levels; and

•	 Revised funding rates for all 
government subsidised courses 
through the introduction 
of various bands at which 
differential prices were paid.

The estimated full year impact of 
these reductions, when added to 
changes announced late in 2011, 
was a $28m reduction in funding 
to the Institute.

Box Hill Institute was required to 
prepare a ‘transition plan’ for a 
newly established taskforce set 
up by the Victorian government. 
The role of the taskforce was to 
provide government with options 
in terms of future directions for 
the VET and TAFE system. In 
response to the need for this 
transition plan, the Institute Board 
and CEO put in place a review of 
all areas of the Institute. 

The Institute’s approach was; 

•	 Any changes necessary should 
have as little impact as possible 
on students and learners;

•	 The Institute’s industry partners 
were made aware of the need 
for change but were not to be 
disadvantaged; and 

•	 The quality of Box Hill Institute’s 
offerings was paramount and 
would not be compromised.

As a result there was a very 
consultative internal and external 
process of explanation of the 
need for change, and examination 
of all options.

The Institute’s transition plan 
was provided to government 
in October 2012. The plan 
summarised the impacts of the 
reductions in funding and also 
contained the support which the 
Institute considered necessary 
in order to ensure that the 
Institute remains a financially 
viable, quality focused and 
sustainable organisation into 
the future. In this respect, the 
Institute’s position, as outlined 
in the transition plan, was that 
in order to remain competitive, 
many of the constraints currently 
facing the Institute needed to be 
reconsidered by government. 

These include greater freedom 
to negotiate wage outcomes 
directly with staff; greater control 
over Institute assets through 
the transfer of those assets to 
the Institute in the same way 
as applies to university. This 
enables the Institute to manage 
and maintain its own assets in 
a sustainable manner. It also 
includes funding of maintenance, 
capital grants and depreciation, 
as is done for universities.

The Institute’s response to the 
funding reduction, as outlined 
in the transition plan, included a 
variety of measures. A number 
of courses were found to be 
no longer financially viable, and 
delivery of these courses ceased. 
A further group of courses 
was considered to be “at risk” 
and decisions on the future of 
those courses were dependent 
on enrolments in 2013. There 
were significant price increases 
announced for many of the 
Institute’s courses, and a variety 
of productivity measures were 
introduced across the Institute. 
The net effect of these measures 
was that more than 200 staff 
who have provided the Institute 
with loyal service, some for many 
years, left the Institute.

In addition to these funding 
reductions, there were significant 
changes to legislation. Institute 
officers were involved in changes 
to government legislation in 
relation to governance measures, 
with amendments to the Victorian 
Education and Training Reform 
Act being passed by the Victorian 
Parliament in December 2012. 
These changes impacted on the 
structure of the Institute’s Board, 
and will be implemented in 2013.
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One pleasing feature of the 
legislative change was that the 
partnership between Box Hill 
Institute and the Centre for Adult 
Education was formalised through 
amendments to the Education 
and Training Reform Act.

At the same time, the Higher 
Education and Skills Group 
issued to the Institute a new 
draft Institute constitution, draft 
strategic planning guidelines and 
commercial guidelines. Institute 
officers spent considerable time 
providing feedback on these 
drafts. It is expected that during 
2013, final versions of these 
documents will be discussed with 
the Institute Board and the Higher 
Education and Skills Group.

national 
priorities
While the predominant policy 
focus in 2012 was on the 
Victorian government priorities, 
the Institute did respond to a 
number of national priority issues 
as well.

Increasing the Capacity 
for the Tertiary 
Education System
Box Hill Institute as a registered 
Higher Education Provider delivers 
degrees to over 500 students in 
an applied model focussed on 
employment outcomes.

In 2012, the Institute invested 
heavily in the further development 
of its higher education offerings. 
In addition, the Institute 
strengthened its relationship with 
a number of universities, which 
included joint letters of offer and 
joint promotions to provide further 
pathways for students into the 
university sector.

Workforce Participation 
and Development 
Needs
The Institute was active with 
a number of industry clients in 
preparing submissions for funding 
for a variety of commonwealth 
grants, including the National 
Workforce Development Fund. 

Numeracy and Literacy 
Support
All enrolled students with the 
Institute are tested to ascertain 
their language and literacy 
support requirements and receive 
ongoing customised support as 
part of their vocational studies.
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international 
hiGhliGhts
new partnerships 
in transnational 
delivery
In 2012, Box Hill Institute forged new global 
partnerships for transnational delivery with:

•	 Chongqing Jiaotong University (CQJU) 

•	 Wuchang University of Technology

•	 Fuzhou Polytechnic 

•	 Chengdu Aerospace Polytechnic.

New Letters of Intent and Memorandums of 
Understanding were signed with a number of 
institutions. These will be further developed to offer 
Box Hill Institute qualifications in aged care, business, 
ICT, manufacturing; and engineering/trade related 
qualifications throughout China, Malaysia, Singapore 
and Indonesia. 

vanuatu tvet sector 
strengthening 
program phase 3 
(ausaid)
The Institute was awarded the Contract for Phase 3 
of the ‘Vanuatu Technical and Vocational Education 
and Training Sector Strengthening Program’. This 
contract aims to support provincial economic 
development through the provision of integrated 
training, employment and business development 
services. The three year contract will commence in 
March 2013. 

australia-pacific 
technical college
The Australia-Pacific Technical College (APTC) 
experienced substantial growth in 2012 with: 

•	 New course offerings in Disability, Aged Care and 
Youth Work; 

•	 The extension of existing courses to different 
campuses; and 

•	 The delivery of courses in new industry locations in 
Nauru and Tonga.

The year also saw the announcement of a new APTC 
campus in the Solomon Islands that will open to 
students in 2013. 
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macau operations
Venetian Macau Limited contracted the Institute to 
provide project manager support to manage the  
pre-opening training project of their extension 
property - Sands Cotai Central Phase 1, a resort 
including the Holiday Inn Macao (1,200 rooms),  
the Conrad Macao (600 rooms), 14 restaurants;  
and a casino. 

Activity included building the leadership capability of 
over 400 managers and supervisors, coordinating 
skills training for 6,500 staff, and managing a 10-day 
pre-opening simulation. The opening of Sands Cotai 
Central Phase 1 in April 2012 was recorded as the 
most successful of all the owners’ properties to date.

Box Hill Institute was then contracted to manage the 
pre-opening simulation for Sands Cotai Central  
Phase 2 – including the world’s largest Sheraton 
Hotel (4,000 rooms). The 10-day simulation was 
critical to ensuring a smooth transition from  
pre-opening environment to a fully integrated hotel 
resort. Sheraton Macao opened successfully in 
September 2012.

The Institute was also successful in being contracted 
to supply curricula in Engineering, Electrical,  
Heating-Ventilation-Air Conditioning (HVAC), and 
Plumbing and support the establishment of the 
Venetian Facilities Academy, with a long term plan of 
offering Australian qualifications in these areas.

singapore 
workforce 
development agency
Box Hill Institute was appointed by the Singapore 
Workforce Development Agency as a new 
Continuous Education and Training (CET) Centre. The 
Centre will  specialise in tourism/food and beverage 
industry courses to develop the human capital to 
meet anticipated industry growth in this sector. This 
represents a great opportunity to further expand  
Box Hill Institute’s existing operation in Singapore in 
the Community and Social Services sector. 

australian 
leadership award 
fellowship program
The Institute worked with the Ministry of Education 
in Colombia to develop their future leaders for the 
vocational education and training industry, under 
the funding of the Australian Leadership Award 
Fellowship program. 

partnership with 
Zime
Box Hill Institute celebrated the successful 
transnational delivery partnership with Zhejiang 
Institute of Mechanical & Electrical Engineering (ZIME) 
at its 60th year anniversary event. 

Graduates of the joint program between Box Hill 
Institute and ZIME have had better employment 
outcomes and career progression, than students 
studying the local programs, according to an 
independent MYCOS survey.
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domestic  
hiGhliGhts
degree pathways
The Institute has a long and successful history 
of building on it strengths in tertiary education by 
working with students to optimise their educational 
opportunities. The Institute aims to provide a variety 
of options into higher level courses. As a result, clear 
pathways are provided between certificates and 
diplomas, into advanced diploma and  
degree courses. 

In 2012, Box Hill Institute aimed to enhance pathways 
opportunities within the Institute, and with our Institute 
partners, by building on articulation agreements that 
were formed in 2011. 

Some of the highlights for the year in relation to this 
initiative included: 

Australian Catholic University
The Memorandum of Understanding between the 
Australian Catholic University (ACU) and the Institute 
has been renewed and signed. A new joint Institute/
ACU pathways brochure outlined courses which offer 
guaranteed places at ACU in selected courses, in 
areas such as Nursing, Business and Management. 

La Trobe University
Additional articulation agreements in Information 
Technology have been formalised. La Trobe University 
also named Box Hill Institute as a business partner for 
the Streamlined Visa Process.

A working party was formed between members of  
the Faculty of Science, Technology and Engineering 
and the Institute’s Centre of Automotive, Transport 
and Engineering to investigate delivery models  
and articulation pathways into the Bachelor of 
Mechanical Engineering. 

Monash University
Up to 50 places were secured for Box Hill Institute 
Diploma of Nursing graduates, for potential pathways 
entry into the Bachelor of Nursing (Community). 

ncver survey 
outcomes
The Institute participated in the National Centre 
for Vocational Education Research (NCVER) TAFE 
Student Outcomes Survey. This was the annual 
graduate satisfaction and outcomes survey (based 
on students who completed in 2010), which was 
managed by the NCVER. Key results included: 

•	 A 3% increase in ‘Employed after training’ (since 
the previous year), with the Institute increasing its 
advantage over the state average to 4.5%

•	 A significant increase in students undertaking 
training for ‘Employment related outcomes’ (from 
77.8% to 82.4%) and a decrease in those studying 
for “Personal development reasons” (from 15.3% 
to 11.8%).

•	 A large increase in graduates employed ‘who 
started training within 12 months of leaving school’, 
from 71.6% (5.8% below state benchmark) to 
88.5% (10.4% above state benchmark).

•	 Student satisfaction remained unchanged at 
85.9%. With both the state and national results 
improving, the comparative gap to the state 
average has gone from 1.7% to 3%.

performance against 
responsibilities
The Institute’s student management system (SMART) 
recorded 40,467 enrolments in 2012, comprising 
39,779 Vocational Education and Training enrolments 
and 688 higher education enrolments. This compares 
to a total of 44,370 enrolments in 2011, and 39,668 
in 2010. 

A breakdown of student contact hours in 2012 is 
provided in Chart B. 

Total student contact hours delivery at Box Hill 
Institute over the past 10 years is shown in Chart C. 



b
o

x
 h

il
l

 i
n

s
t

it
u

t
e

  
2

0
12

 a
n

n
u

a
l

 r
e

p
o

r
t

27

0 300,000 600,000 900,000 1,200,000 1,500,000

APTC and BHI Singapore

Automotive, Transport and Engineering

Biotechnology and Animal Sciences

Building and Furniture Studies

Business Programs

Creative Industries

Electrical and Refrigeration Trades

Hair, Beauty and Floristry

Health and Community Services
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STUDENT CONTACT HOURS RECORDED
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2005

2006
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2009

2010

2011

2012

4,490,0737,172,641

4,559,5427,377,899  

4,610,8957,318,881

4,636,6884,610,895 

4,756,2697,711,571 

4,913,0108,647,262 

4,931,7239,710,915

5,419,8179,796,042

5,564,8219,834,084 

5,048,8698,973,807

COMMERCIALGOVERNMENTTOTAL DELIVERY

4,624,0337,006,110

2,682,568

2,818,357

3,074,883

2,707,986

3,800,210

3,734,252

4,376,225

4,779,192

4,269,263

2,382,077

3,924,938

Chart B: Delivery by centre - student contact hours recorded

Chart C: Total student hours at Box Hill Institute over the past 10 years
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Governance
Box Hill Institute is governed by a Board that is representative of government, industry and 
community. The role of the Board is to establish the Institute’s strategic direction, oversee 
and manage effective and efficient management, approve management plans, and ensure 
that the community is serviced effectively with technical and further education programs 
which are responsive to their needs.

The Board is committed to the adoption of ethical conduct in all areas of its responsibilities 
and authority. In so doing, it binds its members to the principles and practices determined 
in the Board’s Governance Protocol. The Board is ultimately responsible to the Victorian 
Government for the governance and management of the Institute.

committees 
As part of sound corporate 
governance practice and to 
assist the Board in meeting its 
constitutional duties, the board 
has established a number of 
committees. These include:

•	 Board Executive Committee

•	 Audit, Finance and Risk 
Committee

•	 Board Remuneration 
Committee

•	 Capital Projects Committee.

board 
executive 
committee 
The Board Executive Committee 
acts on behalf of the board as 
a reference point on urgent 
matters that may arise between 
Board meetings and to focus 
appropriate attention on the 
selection and appointment of 
board members.

Membership
•	 Elizabeth White (Chair)

•	 Philip Belcher

•	 Noelene Duff

•	 John Maddock.

audit, finance 
and risk 
committee
The objectives of the Audit, 
Finance and Risk Committee 
are to provide independent 
assurance and assistance to the 
board on the Institute’s control 
and compliance framework 
and its external accountability 
responsibilities.

Membership
•	 Bruce Thompson (Chair)

•	 Elizabeth White

•	 Philip Belcher

•	 Noelene Duff

•	 Glen Walker

•	 Janet Compton.

board 
remuneration 
committee
The Board Remuneration 
Committee assists the board 
in ensuring that the Institute’s 
policy and practice for Board 
member and executive officer 
remuneration are appropriate and 
consistent with the requirements 
of Victorian Government policy. 
The relevant policy areas relate to 
the Remuneration of Directors of 
TAFE Institute Boards, Executive 
Remuneration for Government 
Business Enterprises and 
Statutory Authorities, Ministerial 
Guidelines relating to executive 
remuneration and instructions 
from the Government Sector 
Executive Remuneration  
Panel (GSERP).

Membership
•	 Elizabeth White (Chair)

•	 Philip Belcher

•	 Noelene Duff

•	 John Maddock.

capital 
projects 
committee
The Capital Projects Committee 
monitors the delivery of building 
capital projects as nominated by 
the Board, which are included in 
the Institute’s approved program 
of capital building projects. It 
reviews progress against program 
and budget, and provides advice 
to the Board regarding the status 
of the program.

Membership
•	 Helen Buckingham (Chair)

•	 Elizabeth White

•	 Bruce Thompson

•	 John Maddock

•	 Christine Kilmartin  
(External member).
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board proFiles
ms eliZabeth white 
(Chair)
Appointment: Co-opted

Qualifications
Bachelor of Arts (Social Sciences) La Trobe University, 
Victoria

Masters of Education, La Trobe University, Victoria

Trained Primary Teachers Certificate

Trained Special Teachers Certificate

Professional Affiliations
Member of the Australian Human Resources Institute 
(AHRI)

Member of the Australian Society of Association 
Executives

Professional Experience
Elizabeth is the Chief Executive of the Victorian 
Caravan Parks Association, which was formed in 1965 
to protect, promote, and advance the caravan park 
industry. She has previously held corporate positions 
within the association management sector and has a 
background in senior education administration. 

Meeting attendance: 10/10

 

mr philip belcher 
(Deputy Chair)
Appointment: Co-opted

Qualifications
Master of Business Administration - Macquarie 
University, NSW

Certificate of Technology (Electronics) - Box Hill 
Technical College, Victoria

Professional Affiliations
Fellow of the Australian Institute of Company Directors

Fellow of the Australian Institute of Management 

Director of the Australian Institute of  
Management Consultants

Professional Experience
Philip is the Executive General Manager, NECare, NEC 
Australia Pty, Ltd. Philip has held various managing 
director, CEO, GM and board positions with various 
industry leading companies including Cisco Systems, 
StorageTek, and Datacraft (now Dimension Data) 
during his extensive career in general management 
and sales leadership within the Information Technology 
and Telecommunications sector. 

Meeting attendance: 8/10 
(Leave of absence: 2/10)

ms noelene duff 
(Deputy Chair)
Appointment: Ministerial

Qualifications
Bachelor of Arts (Monash University), Victoria

Bachelor of Social Work (La Trobe University), Victoria

Graduate Diploma in Business (RMIT), Victoria

Master of Business (RMIT), Victoria

Professional Affiliations
International Vice President International City/County 
Management Association

Fellow of the Australian Institute of Company 
Directors, Fellow - Local Government  
Managers Australia

Fellow of the Local Government Professionals Victoria

Fellow of the Institute of Public Affairs Australia

Professional Experience
Noelene is the CEO of the City of Whitehorse and has 
had extensive experience at a senior management 
level in State and Local Government and the 
non-government sector. She has a very strong 
commitment to community issues and community 
policy and strong and extensive connections with 
networks in the local community, the Box Hill area, 
and the South-eastern suburbs of Melbourne. 
Noelene has significant experience and a strong 
interest in governance, and strong financial skills. 
Noelene is the Immediate Past President of Local 
Government Managers Australia and in this role 
has played a key role at State and National levels 
in advocating key issues on behalf of the local 
government sector.

Meeting attendance: 8/10 
(Leave of absence: 1/10, Apology: 1/10)
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ms janet compton
Appointment: Ministerial

Qualifications
Bachelor of Science, University of New South Wales

Post Graduate Diploma in Physiotherapy, Sydney 
University, NSW

Post Graduate Diploma in Administration, 
Queensland University

Master in Public Policy, University of New England, 
NSW

Diploma, Australian Institute of Company Directors

Professional Affiliations
Member Australian Institute of Company Directors

Associate Fellow of the Australian College of Health 
Service Executive

Member of the Institute of Public Administration 
Australia

Fellow of the Leadership Victoria (Williamson Fellow)

Professional Experience
Janet is the Executive Director for Acute Health at 
Eastern Health. As a physiotherapist, Janet has had a 
varied career in both the public and private healthcare 
sector. She has held a variety of senior management 
and CEO roles, including Calvary Healthcare 
Bethlehem, Nepean Rehabilitation, Western Health 
and The Alfred. Janet has a keen interest in quality 
management as a management philosophy and has 
a number of publications in  
this area. 

Meeting attendance: 7/10 
(Leave of absence: 3/10)

mr john maddock
Appointment: ex officio

Qualifications
Master of Tertiary Education Management, University 
of Melbourne

Diploma of Business Studies – Accountancy, RMIT

Diploma of Education, State College of Victoria 
Hawthorn

Professional Affiliations
Fellow, Australian Institute of Company Directors 
(FAICD)

Member of Community Colleges for International 
Development (CCID)

Trustee of Committee for Economic Development 
Australia (CEDA)

Member of the Institute of Public Administration 
Australia (IPAA)

Member of TAFE Directors Australia (TDA)

Member of Australasian Association of 
Institutional Research (AAIR)

Executive Committee Member of the Post Secondary 
International Network of Presidents of Community 
Colleges

Member of the Victorian TAFE Association CEO 
Council

Professional Experience
John has been CEO of Box Hill Institute since 1999. 
Prior to this, John was CEO of Gordon Institute and 
during his career has held a variety of management 
roles in the TAFE sector. Before starting his career 
in education, John was employed by accounting 
firm, Arthur Andersen & Co. working in the business 
consultancy area.. 

John has been involved in many leadership roles 
across Vocational Education and Training (VET) in 
Victoria and Australia. They range from his position 
as Deputy Chair of the Victorian Tertiary Admissions 
Centre (VTAC), Member of the Victorian Curriculum & 
Assessment Authority, Member of Deakin University 
Council for the past six years and a Board Member 
of the Innovation and Business Skills Australia 
Board. He serves on a number of key state, national 
and international Boards and Committees, with a 
particular focus on education, IT, and business skills. 

Meeting attendance: 10/10
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mr bruce thompson
Appointment: Co-opted

Qualifications
Bachelor of Economics, Monash University, Victoria

Graduate of the Wharton Business School Advanced 
Management Program

Professional Affiliations
Fellow of the Australian Society of Certified Practicing 
Accountants

Fellow of the Australian Institute of Company 
Directors

Professional Experience
Bruce is a director of SMS Management and 
Technology Limited. He is the former Chairman and 
Managing Director of Hewlett Packard Australia and 
New Zealand and he worked with Hewlett Packard 
for 32 years in Australia and overseas until his 
retirement in August 2000.  He retired as Chairman 
of Innovonics Ltd in January 2005 and as Managing 
Director and CEO of Keycorp Limited in June 2006.  
Bruce also served as Trustee of the Melbourne 
Cricket Ground Trust from 1998 to 2007 and on 
a number of Boards and industry associations, 
including the Business Council of Australia from 1995 
to 2000. Bruce is a Graduate of the Wharton and 
Melbourne Business Schools Advanced Management 
Programs. During 2009, Bruce was appointed a 
Commissioner of the Victorian Commission for 
Gambling Regulation (VCGR) and as Chairman of that 
Commission.

Meeting attendance: 9/10 
(Leave of absence: 1/10)

mr michael 
Zangmeister
Appointment: Elected Staff

Qualifications
Bachelor of Education, Rusden State College

Certificate IV in Training and Assessment, Box Hill 
Institute

Diploma of Training and Assessment, Box Hill Institute

Professional Affiliations
Member MEAA (Variety Artist) 

Member of the Australian Education Union  
Sub-Branch Executive, Box Hill Institute

Member of the Australian Education Union TAFE 
Committee 

Councillor of Australian Education Union TAFE and 
Adult Provider Sector

Professional Experience
Michael is the elected Staff Board member and a 
Senior Educator in the Centre for Creative Industries 
at Whitehorse Campus. Michael’s background is in 
acting, directing, and improvisation (including Theatre 
Sports, winning the ‘Best & Fairest’ award in 1986). 
He was also active in stand up comedy, including 
writing and performing shows in Fringe Festivals 
and at Le Joke at the old Last Laugh theatre in 
Collingwood. He has also performed in numerous TV 
shows, feature films and TV commercials.

Michael has been at Box Hill Institute since 1983 
and has taught in many course areas and teaching 
centres in that time. Prior to 1983, Michael worked 
in a Theatre in Schools performing company, as a 
stand-up comedian, part-time actor, emergency 
teacher in the secondary system and as an orderly in 
the Casualty Department at Maroondah.

Meeting attendance: 9/10 
(Leave of absence: 1/10)
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mr glen walker
Appointment: Ministerial

Qualifications
Bachelor of Engineering (Mechanical), University of 
Melbourne, Victoria

Graduate Diploma in Management, University of New 
South Wales

Professional Affiliations
Board Member of the Committee for Ballarat.

Chair of Ballarat West Growth Zone Task team.

Professional Experience
Glen has worked in a variety or senior management 
roles in the automotive and transport logistics 
industries in a career spanning 25 years. He has held 
senior executive positions with MaxiTRANS Australia, 
a large Australian public company and the largest 
manufacturer and supplier of trailing equipment to 
the transport industry and with PACCAR Australia, 
a subsidiary of the global PACCAR Inc group, the 
manufacturer and supplier of Australia’s leading truck 
brands Kenworth and DAF. He is currently Chief 
Executive Officer for Sargeant Transport, one of the 
largest Victorian regional based transport solutions 
providers with over 250 pieces of equipment servicing 
customers such as McCain Foods, Mars, Murray 
Goulburn, Fonterra and Woolworths. Glen has 
detailed local and international industry knowledge 
and links particularly in the advanced manufacturing 
industry, an important industry sector for the Institute. 
In his work roles he has employed hundreds of 
graduates, trades-people and semi-skilled labourers 
and as such is aware of how the Institute can help 
prepare its graduates for such employment. Glen has 
a broad network of contacts in a variety of spheres 
and governance experience from a number of 
advisory Boards and committees. Prior to joining the 
Board, Glen served on the Board’s Audit Committee 
as an independent member co-opted by the Board.

Meeting attendance: 9/10 
(Leave of absence: 1/10)

ms sasha feldman
Appointment: Elected Student

Sasha is the Student Representative to the Board 
and is currently studying a Diploma in Sports and 
Recreation Administration. This year Sasha has been 
getting involved with volunteering at many sporting 
and community events whilst waitressing part-time at 
a Cafe. Last year in 1st Semester Sasha completed 
a Certificate IV in Business at Box Hill Institute and in 
August she lived in Fiji for three months volunteering 
at the Vutikalulu Centre for Sustainable Technology 
and Rural Development based in Upper Naitasiri, Fiji. 
Sasha has been working since she was 16 and has 
been involved with many local communities such as 
Girl Guides and various Basketball Clubs involving 
playing and coaching. 

Meeting attendance: 8/8

ms helen buckingham
Appointment: Ministerial

Qualifications
Bachelor of Arts, La Trobe University, Victoria

Diploma of Education, La Trobe University, Victoria

Graduate Diploma in Careers, Deakin University, 
Victoria

Australian Institute of Company Directors Diploma, 
University of NSW

Professional Experience
Helen has extensive experience in State and Local 
Government and has been a teacher, Careers 
Counsellor, Local Councillor, Mayor and Member 
of Parliament, serving as the member for Koonung 
Province. Whilst a Member of the Legislative Council 
of the Parliament of Victoria she served on the 
Parliamentary Standing Committee for Education 
and Training and chaired the Parliamentary Review 
of the Body Corporate Legislation and Regulations 
culminating in the Owners Corporation Act 2006. 
Helen retired from Parliament in 2006. Helen was an 
elected Councillor in the City of Whitehorse from 1997 
to 2002, and served as Mayor from 1998 to 1999. 
Whilst a councillor, Helen was a member of a number 
of Council Committees. Helen also served as a Board 
Member of Box Hill Hospital from 1991 to 1995 and 
was a member of the Monash University Department 
of Physiology Animal Ethics Committee 1995-2001. 
Helen is a member of the Council of Deakin University 
and is a Board member of the Family Access 
Network. In 1998 she was awarded the Australian 
Institute of Company Directors Diploma.

Meeting attendance: 10/10
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mr ian hind 
Appointment: Ministerial

Qualifications
Bachelor or Economics, University of Sydney, NSW

Diploma of Education, Charles Sturt University, NSW

Master of Science in Agriculture (Agricultural 
Economics), University of Sydney, NSW

Graduate Certificate in Management, Monash 
University, Victoria

Professional Affiliations
Fellow, of the Australian College of Educators (FACE)

Professional Experience
Ian is an education and strategic planning consultant 
with in excess of twenty years of experience in all 
levels of education and training in Australia and in a 
wide range of international settings. He has extensive 
experience in international business development, 
strategic and business planning, education finance, 
project design, reporting and implementation, 
institutional strengthening and capacity building, 
monitoring and evaluation, quality assurance, human 
resource management and quality assurance. Ian 
has led the implementation of a number of significant 
education and training projects and reviews in the 
Pacific, Middle East and South East Asia regions, and 
has extensive experience in working with bilateral and 
multi-lateral development agencies including AusAID, 
NZAID, World Bank, Asian Development Bank, SIDA 
and the European Union. 

In addition to having held a number of senior 
positions in education and strategic planning in the 
Australian education and training system, Ian has 
considerable experience in corporate governance and 
in stakeholder consultation and working and senior 
government and agency officials and ministers.

Meeting attendance: 8/10 
(Leave of absence: 2/10)

mr greg malone 
Appointment: Ministerial

Qualifications
Master of Business Administration, Monash University 

Graduate Diploma in Management, Monash 
University

Production Engineering Studies, Granville TAFE

Electrical Trade Certificate, Wollongong Technical 
College

Professional Affiliations
Member of the Australian Institute of Company 
Directors

Professional Experience
Greg is the Managing Director of Nexteer Automotive 
Australia Pty Ltd, a supplier of Steering and Drive train 
systems to global automotive manufacturers. He has 
over 30 years experience in manufacturing in Australia 
and across the Asia pacific region in senior leadership 
roles specialising in strategic procurement, general 
management and ongoing business sustainability 
while gaining an MBA and Grad Dip from Monash 
University with studies in Supply Chain Management 
at Kellogg (USA) and Marketing Management at IMD 
(Swiss). Greg has chaired and held board positions in 
a number of Industry Associations and is a Member 
of the Australian Institute of Company Directors.

Meeting attendance: 10/10
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director  
development 
Box Hill Institute is committed to the ongoing 
professional development of its directors. Relevant 
activity in 2012 comprised:

•	 Reports from the chair on briefings and meetings 
with the minister and senior government officers.

•	 Written reports from the CEO or Senior Executive 
Director Education and Training on developments 
in vocational education and training and higher 
education, including policy developments and 
government initiatives.

•	 In-house information and planning sessions on a 
range of topics relevant to the operations of the 
Institute and governance role of directors.

•	 Information briefings presented by members  
of the executive team on specific areas of  
Institute operations.

•	 Opportunities to attend the Victorian TAFE 
Association (VTA) State Conference and any 
training and development sessions offered by the 
VTA or other government agency.

•	 Australian Institute of Company Directors 
membership, including professional development 
seminars, newsletters and bulletins.

In addition, the CEO and Executive Director, 
Corporate Governance circulate information of 
relevance and interest to directors. They inform 
the Board of opportunities for development and 
coordinate the provision of sessions as agreed by  
the Board.

All Board members received a range of regular 
publications and updates from professional 
associations and other advisory bodies highlighting 
changes in legislation and best practice, such as the 
bi-monthly Australian Institute of Company Directors 
(AICD) and director updates.

A number of directors undertook additional 
professional development activities in a range of areas 
relevant to their role at the Institute.

directors of box hill 
enterprises limited
The names and relevant details of the directors in 
office as of 31 December 2012 are:

•	 John Maddock (Managing Director)

•	 Philip Belcher

•	 Bruce Thompson

•	 Elizabeth White

•	 Noelene Duff

•	 Michael Zangmeister

•	 Janet Compton

•	 Helen Buckingham

•	 Ian Hind

•	 Greg Malone

•	 Glen Walker.

directors of box hill 
institute singapore 
propriety limited
The names and relevant details of the directors in 
office at the date of this report are:

•	 John Maddock (Managing Director)

•	 Noel Lyons (Singapore Chief Operating Officer)

•	 Valerie Lim (Singapore Resident Director).
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Financial  
perFormance 
2012 financial 
performance
The Institute and the Box Hill Institute Group, 
comprising the Institute and its controlled entities, 
the Centre for Adult Education, Box Hill Enterprises 
Limited, and Box Hill Institute Singapore, achieved 
a consolidated net operating balance before 
depreciation, capital grants and expenditure from 
capital grants of $10.182 million and a net operating 
balance after capital grants, operating expenditure 
from capital grants, and depreciation of $13.040 
million. This net operating result was in line with the 
Board approved operating budget and subsequent 
revisions during the year.

The 2012 consolidated financial performance includes 
the operations of the Centre for Adult Education 
(CAE) for the first time. Consistent with applicable 
international accounting standards, the 2011 financial 
comparisons exclude the CAE as the Box Hill Institute 
Board gained effective control during 2012. 

Comprehensive Operating 
Statement
The overall net result from continuing operations, 
which includes other economic flows relating to 
movements in long service leave valuations and 
impairment provisions for relevant assets, was 
$13.040 million for the year compared to $17.864 
million the previous year. 

The lower result for 2012 compared to 2011 is due to 
a number of contributing factors as follows:

•	 The 2011 financial performance includes a higher 
level of capital grant contributions relating to 
approved infrastructure projects and a one off 
funding adjustment from the phase out of the 
Institute’s pipeline delivery commitments.

•	 For 2012, the overall revenues have been  
impacted by:

 •  The reduction in government funding for 
government subsidised delivery for large 
metropolitan TAFE’s announced in October 2011; 

 • Further reductions announced in May 2012 as 
a result of the implementation of the Refocusing 
Vocational Education and Training policy 
statement; and

 • A continuing decline in international student 
revenue as a result of changed visa  
requirements and the continuing impact of the 
high Australian dollar.

•	 On a consolidated basis, the reduction in revenues 
has been partially offset by the inclusion of the 
CAE operations from 1 January 2012 whereby net 
assets acquired on consolidation are required to 
be reflected as a net gain in the Comprehensive 
Income Statement.

The 2012 funding reductions for government 
subsidised delivery have been further compounded 
by reduced demand in some traditional areas of 
program delivery as the local economy continues to 
be impacted by global markets and lower consumer 
confidence and related spending. 

To accommodate these funding and demand 
reductions all entities within the Box Hill Institute 
Group have undertaken a detailed review of all 
programs, staffing profiles and corporate overheads, 
and staffing reductions and realignments have been 
made where appropriate.

Consequently, the reduction in overall revenues has 
been partially mitigated by reduced expenditure resulting 
in a positive net result from continuing operations.

In addition to these operating impacts during 2012 
all Box Hill Institute Group entities were required to 
undertake a review and valuation of all property plant 
and equipment in accordance with current Ministerial 
Direction requirements. The overall comprehensive 
result of $39.221 million has been impacted 
favourably by these scheduled asset revaluations 
with the majority of the Institute’s buildings revalued 
upwards as a result of underlying market conditions 
and building replacement costs.

Balance Sheet
The consolidation of the CAE within the Box Hill 
Institute Group and the Comprehensive Result for  
the year has resulted in a 22% increase in the  
Box Hill Institute Group’s total assets, increasing from 
$226.418 million to $277.160 million.  Net worth has 
also increased by a comparable amount.

These assets are fully committed to supporting the 
Box Hill Institute Group’s continuing operations, its 
Strategic Plan initiatives and obligations and are fully 
allocated in the Group’s five year financial plan and 
2013 Operating budget. 

The current Box Hill Institute Group balance sheet is 
fully committed to ensuring the continuing financial 
viability of all entities within the Box Hill Institute Group 
by ensuring adequate provision for:

•	 Funding of all employee entitlements and payables 
as they fall due and payable;

•	 The completion of the Integrated Technology Hub;

•	 A continuing requirement to accommodate 
potential demand shifts in response to the 
Institute’s new fee structures and to respond to the 
government funding adjustments within the context 
of reducing resources; and 

•	 To provide for sufficient working capital to  
ensure that liquidity is maintained at financially 
prudent levels.
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YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2012 
$’000

2011 
$’000

2010 
$’000

2009 
$’000

2008 
$’000

Summary of Financial Performance

Government Contributions – Operating 69,113 67,021 62,330 61,328 60,154

Sale of goods and services 69,094 56,100 54,998 54,781 48,882

Other Revenue 7,351 5,441 3,653 3,367 5,642

ToTAL INCoME FRoM TRANSACTIoNS  
(Excluding Capital Grants)

145,558 120,981 119,476 114,678 103,491

ToTAL ExPENSES FRoM TRANSACTIoNS
(Excluding Depreciation and Expenditure  
from capital contributions)

(135,376) (112,220) 120,981 119,476 114,678

NET RESULT FRoM TRANSACTIoNS 
(Adjusted)

10,182 16,342 7,626 4,388 8,064

Government Contributions - Capital 5,038 9,673 6,292 6,991 5,160

Depreciation and Amortisation (6,030) (5,915) (7,615) (4,422) (3,660)

Expenditure using government contributions – capital (1,203) (680) (1,446) (1,455) (791)

Other economic flows included in net result 5,053 (1,556) (826) (190) (874)

NET RESULT FRoM CoNTINUING oPERATIoNS 13,040 17,864 4,031 5,312 8,622

Summary of Balance Sheet Performance:

Assets 277,160 226,418 204,151 197,964 194,718

Liabilities (37,766) (32,294) (27,890) (25,734) (27,800)

NET ASSETS 239,394 194,125 176,261 172,230 166,918

Equity:

Accumulated Surplus 90,778 77,739 59,875 55,844 50,532

Reserves 121,492 89,262 89,262 89,262 89,262

Contributed Capital 27,124 27,124 27,124 27,124 27,124

NET WoRTH 239,394 194,125 176,261 172,230 166,918

Five Year Consolidated Financial Summary
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compliance 
Employment Services
In 2012, Box Hill Institute: 

•	 Upgraded its HRIS system to the most 
contemporary version allowing smoother 
integration of the Box Hill Institute and CAE payroll 
and recruitment. The HRIS was also updated to 
allow greater staff KIOSK usage and more user 
friendly reporting. 

•	 To ensure legislative compliance the 
implementation of a project to ensure compliance 
for staff holding Working with Children checks. 
Centre managers have identified staff requiring 
Working with Children checks and the Institute 
intends to be fully compliant. 

Workplace Relations
•	 Continued to work with staff groups and unions 

through the Consultative Committees to assist with 
the implementation, monitoring and negotiation of 
Enterprise Agreements. The parties are committed 
to a cooperative approach involving joint 
participation and consultation. The Consultative 
committees meet on a regular scheduled basis  
as well as on an ad-hoc basis when specific 
matters arise.

Industrial Relations
In 2012, there was one day of industrial action.

Employee Relations
•	 Employment decisions are based on merit. 

•	 Employees are treated fairly and reasonably. 

•	 Equal employment opportunity is provided and 
human rights are upheld. 

•	 Employees have a reasonable avenue for 
redress against unfair or unreasonable treatment. 
Employment information and data is collected  
and managed confidentially in accordance 
with Privacy, Public Records and other relevant 
legislative requirements. 

Staff Wellbeing 
The Institute conducts a bi-annual Staff Satisfaction 
Survey to gain a snapshot of employee views of 
the Institute at a particular point in time. This survey 
is one of a number of data sources used to inform 
the Institute of the views of its staff. The survey was 
conducted in March 2012 and an action plan is being 
developed for implementation over the next  
18 months.

The Institute provides an independent Employee 
Assistance Program (EAP) for staff and an 
independent Manager Assist Program (MAP) for 
members of the Management Team. The EAP is 
a service to promote staff health and well-being in 
relation to issues at home and at work. The MAP 
is a pro-active and supportive self-referral service 
designed specifically for managers. It aims to help 
managers lead, manage and support their team to 
maximise performance and achievement and to assist 
managers to resolve pressing personal issues.

A Wellness Day was conducted for staff in 2012 
with separate sessions focussing on organisational 
awareness; mental health problems in the workplace 
which was run by Beyond Blue; Eating Well which 
aimed to create awareness about food selection and 
provide easy-to-implement strategies that enhance 
vitality and prevent chronic diseases; and yoga. In 
addition lunchtime sessions were held for staff on 
dealing with difficult situations, sleeping well and 
general health and wellbeing.

Staff Achievement and Recognition
In 2012 the institute recognised and awarded staff 
through its Staff Achievement and Recognition 
Program (SARP).

The objectives are to:

•	 Provide public recognition to employees and teams 
who perform above and beyond. 

•	 Recognise employees who embody the Institute’s 
vision, mission and values. 

•	 Recognise outstanding professional practices. 

•	 Promote increased awareness of best practices 
and successful development strategies. 

SARP winners are outlined in the ‘Year of Awards’ 
section of the Annual Report. 

Compulsory Student Services and 
Amenities Fee
The Institute levies a compulsory student services 
and amenities fee that is determined in accordance 
with the Ministerial Directions on Students Fees and 
Charges. The fee is fully applied to the provision 
of funding for student recreation, counselling and 
welfare and other non-academic support services.

The processes for the collection and disbursement  
of the services and amenities fees are  
managed by the Institute and are not paid to any 
student organisations.

Total Student Services and Amenities Fees collected 
for the year ending 31 December 2012 by the 
Institute was $673,964.
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Consultancies under $10,000

Consultants Number of 
Engagements

Total 
Fees Paid Particulars of Projects involved

Estimated 
Future 
Commitments 

Godfrey Spowers (Vic) P/L 2 $379,178
Architectural services related to the Institute’s 
capital works and Infrastructure programs and the 
Integrated Technology Hub project.

$-

Grant Thornton 2 $112,781
Professional advice and financial due diligence 
services relating to the Centre for Adult Education 
(CAE) partnership and transition plan development.

$35,000

Aspin Pty Ltd 1 21,780
Academic research and evaluation and change 
management consultancy.

$-

Avaxa Pty Ltd 1 $27,800
Data reconciliation services for the Higher 
Education and Skills Group skills reform grants.

$30,000

BDO Kendalls 2 $66,578
Consultancy services relating to business 
combinations, acquisitions and CSR framework.

$-

Corrs Chambers 
Westgarth

3 $134,781
Professional advice and legal due diligence 
services relating to the CAE partnership and other 
business matters.

$-

Deloitte Access 2 143,133
Consultancy services relating to business 
combinations and governance frameworks.

$-

D’Accord (Vic) Pty Ltd 1 37,606
Consultancy services relating to employee 
assistance programs.

$-

Pricewaterhouse Coopers 1 12,000
Consultancy services relating to business 
combinations and acquisitions.

$-

Prospect Research 1 23,621
Consultancy services for market research and 
market planning.

$-

Synoptic Consultancy 1 12,633 Business process improvement consultancy. $-

Talent2 Works 1 57,289
Consultancy services relating to the Institute’s 
Human Resources and Payroll systems.

$-

Technology One 1 60,522
Consultancy services relating to the Institute’s 
Financial systems.

$-

Wilde and Woollard 3 78,375
Architectural services related to the Institute’s 
capital works and Infrastructure programs and the 
Integrated Technology Hub project.

$-

consultancies
Details of consultancies engaged during 2012 are as follows:

Consultancies over $10,000

Number of Engagements 23

Total Fees Incurred $130,000

These engagements relate to various consultants engaged for the provision of architectural and quantity surveyor services relating to 
the Institute’s building and infrastructure projects and commercial bid and business case development projects.
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risk management 
and attestation 
statement
As part of its annual Risk Management program and 
commitment to continuous improvement, the Institute 
undertakes an annual review of its Risk Management 
Policy and Risk Management Plan to ensure that 
the its risk management framework continues to 
appropriately support the Box Hill Institute Group’s 
Operations and is in line with appropriate international 
risk management standards where appropriate.

During 2012, the Institute’s risk management policy 
and plan were updated to include the operations of 
the two new controlled entities being the Centre for 
Adult Education and BHI Singapore Pte Ltd.

In addition, the biennial Risk Framework Quality 
Review (RFQR) undertaken by the Victorian Managed 
Insurance Authority (VMIA) of Box Hill Institute’s 
Risk Management Framework resulted in a ranking 
of “Effective” for a score of 9 out of a possible 10. 
According to the VMIA, this result placed the Institute 
as the highest rated Victorian TAFE undertaking 
the review in 2012, and in the top four within the 
government sector for similar sized organisations

At its meeting on the 21 February 2013, and in 
accordance with the requirements of the Victorian 
Management Insurance Authority Act, the Audit 
Finance and Risk Committee approved the following 
attestation statement to be made by the Chief 
Executive Officer on behalf of the Institute.

attestation 
statement
I, John Maddock, certify that as at the 31st 
December 2012, the Box Hill Institute of Technical 
and Further Education and its controlled entities, 
have risk management processes in place broadly 
consistent with the Australian/New Zealand Risk 
Management Standard (or equivalent standard) and 
an internal control system is in place that enables the 
executive to understand, manage and satisfactorily 
control risk exposures in significant respects. 

The Audit Finance and Risk Committee verify this 
assurance and that the risk profile of the Institute has 
been critically reviewed within the last 12 months.

John Maddock 
Chief Executive Office 

21 February 2013
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Financial Reporting Directions
This Report is prepared in accordance with  
the requirements of the Financial Reporting 
Directions. For further details please refer to the 
Financial Statements. 

Statements of Pecuniary Interests
The Institute has in place policies and procedures that 
require relevant officers of all Box Hill Institute Group 
entities to complete Statements of Pecuniary Interests 
on an annual basis. All such statements have been  
duly completed. 

Information about declarations of pecuniary interests 
by all relevant officers should be directed to:

The Freedom of Information Officer 
Box Hill Institute of TAFE 
465 Elgar Road, Box Hill 3128 
Telephone: (03) 9286 9222

Details of Shares Held By  
Senior Officers
Requests for information about shares held by senior 
officers, as nominee or held beneficially in a statutory 
authority or subsidiary, if any, should be directed to:

The Freedom of Information Officer 
Box Hill Institute of TAFE 
465 Elgar Road, Box Hill 3128 
Telephone: (03) 9286 9222

Ex Gratia Payments
There were no ex gratia payments incurred or written 
off during the reporting period. 

Related Party Transactions
There were no related party transactions during the 
reporting period. 

National Competition Policy
The Institute has in place policies and procedures 
to ensure compliance with the National Competition 
Policy which take into account the Victorian 
Government’s Competitive Neutrality Policy 
requirements and the requirements of  
related legislation.

Freedom of Information
Box Hill Institute has implemented procedures which 
facilitate all requests for information from students, 
staff and the general public without recourse to the 
Freedom of Information Act 1982. 

The Institute also provides information, which 
meets the requirements of Part 2 of the Freedom of 
Information Act 1982, online at Box Hill Institute and 
the Centre for Adult Education websites.

Requests under the Freedom of Information  
Act should be addressed to: 

The Freedom of Information Office 
Box Hill Institute 
465 Elgar Road, Box Hill VIC 3128 
Telephone: (03) 9286 9222

Box Hill Institute may levy a charge for information 
provided that is subject to a Freedom of Information 
request, in accordance with the relevant 
requirements. There was one formal request for 
information to be supplied under the Freedom of 
Information Act during the 2012 reporting period.

Any student may see his/her personal record by 
applying to: 

The Registrar 
Box Hill Institute 
465 Elgar Road, Box Hill VIC 3128 
Telephone: (03) 9286 9572

Any staff member may see access to his/her 
personnel file by applying to: 

Executive Manager OD Strategy and Service 
Box Hill Institute 
810 Whitehorse Road 
Box Hill VIC 3128 
Telephone: (03) 9286 9441

Whistleblowers Protection Act
The Institute’s current policy and procedures relating 
to the Whistleblowers Protection Act 2001 are 
available on the website. There were no protected 
disclosures in 2012. 

Conduct Principles
All staff members are required to comply with the 
requirements set out in the Institute’s Code of 
Conduct and the Code of Conduct for the Victorian 
Public Sector. 

Occupational Health and Safety
The Occupational Health and Safety (OHS)  
Plan was implemented in 2012. It included the 
following components:

Training and Development Component

Staff were provided with the following training 
opportunities dependent upon needs:

•	 Health and Safety Representative five day course  
and refresher

•	 Emergency Control Organisation/Warden Training

•	 First Aid Level Two

•	 CPR/Defibrillator refresher

•	 OHS for the Office

•	 Chemical Safety

•	 Manual Handling

•	 Introduction to OHS legislation

•	 Accident/Incident Investigation.
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Communication Plan:

Staff were provided with information on occupational 
health and safety through the following channels:

•	 OHS Crown Bulletin

•	 Chemwatch Bulletin

•	 WorkSafe Week

•	 Regular emails regarding OHS and hazard 
identification/control

•	 Access to WorkSafe and other industry bulletins 
and newsletters.

oHS Committee and Volunteer Safety Staff:

•	 The Box Hill Institute Occupational Health and Safety 
Committee met consistently throughout 2012

•	 There are 21 health and safety representatives

•	 There are 66 Fire/Zone Wardens across all campuses

•	 There are 72 First Aid Officers covering all campuses

•	 The committee reviewed and endorsed all OHS 
policy and procedures for consultation

•	 New Terms of Reference was adopted for the 
committee to better define role and responsibilities.

Health and Safety Week:

Activities for Health and Safety Week included 
sessions on:

•	 Hazard identification and risk assessment sessions

•	 Basic ergonomics and work station  
assessment/setup

•	 Personal safety and security.

WorkSafe Victoria:

•	 WorkSafe Victoria visited Box Hill Institute for three 
notifiable incidents in 2012

•	 There were no Improvement Notices issued and all 
matters have been remedied

•	 Box Hill Institute maintains a good relationship with 
the regulator.

other oHS:

•	 Evacuation drills conducted on all sites

•	 Hepatitis A and B immunisation for all first aid staff

•	 Immunisation for influenza offered to all staff.

Building Maintenance
This report provides details of the extent of Box Hill 
Institute’s compliance with the Building Act 1993, as 
required by the Directions of the Minister for Finance 
issued under Section 8 of the Financial Management 
Act 1994. Buildings Condition Audits are conducted 
annually on each building to meet ministerial 
guidelines. Box Hill Institute has in place maintenance 
programs for the buildings, plant and equipment 
across all campuses.

Construction Works
Box Hill Institute has a strong focus on meeting 
regulatory requirements and occupational health 
and safety standards. The Institute incorporates 
environmentally sustainable features in the course 
of providing and maintaining its buildings, with the 
intention of providing aesthetically pleasing facilities 
which exceed the expectations of students, staff and 
the general public.

The Institute ensures that, for all works requiring 
building approval, an independent building surveyor 
is engaged to issue the required permits, inspect the 
works on a progressive basis and provide the final 
occupancy certificates. Box Hill Institute ensures that 
the relevant local council is approached for advice on 
local council provisions and issues during the project 
planning stage. Contractors and building practitioners 
engaged for Institute works are required to provide 
evidence of correct registration, relevant insurances 
and WorkCover for their engagement. All building 
contractors engaged by the Institute during 2012 
undertook a formal safety induction and met their 
required obligations.

Other Relevant Information
Consistent with the requirements of the Financial 
Management Act 1994, Box Hill Institute has 
prepared material on the following items, details of 
which are available on request and in accordance 
with the Institute’s Freedom of Information Policies:

•	 Changes in prices, fees, charges, rates and levies

•	 Major external reviews

•	 Major research and development activities

•	 Overseas visits undertaken

•	 Publications

•	 Marketing and public relations activities

•	 Occupational health and safety assessments  
and measures

•	 Industrial relations issues; and

•	 Major committees sponsored by Box Hill Institute.

Enquires should be addressed to:

The Freedom of Information Officer 
Box Hill Institute 
465 Elgar Road, Box Hill 3128 
Telephone: (03) 9286 9222
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workforce data 2012

TEACHING STAFF

Employment Status  Full Time Part Time Total EFT

On-Going Female 71 66 137 114.2

On-Going Male 122 20 142 136.4

Fixed Term Female 50 33 83 69.3

Fixed Term Male 78 14 92 89.6

Sessional Female 0 123 123 23.3

Sessional Male 0 145 145 29.5

SUB-ToTAL Female 121 222 343 206.8

SUB-ToTAL Male 200 179 379 255.5

PACCT AND NON-TEACHING STAFF

Employment Status  Full Time Part Time Total EFT

Executive Officers Female 9  9 9

Executive Officers Male 5  5 5

Management Female 19  19 19

Management Male 22 1 23 22.3

PACCT On-Going Female 116 42 158 142.3

PACCT On-Going Male 47 9 56 54.6

PACCT Fixed Term Female 36 19 55 47.6

PACCT Fixed Term Male 26 6 32 29.1

PACCT Casual Female 0 27 27 8.7

PACCT Casual Male 0 5 5 2.7

Other Staff On-Going Female 1 0 1 1

Other Staff On-Going Male 11 3 14 12.4

Other Staff Fixed Term Female 0 0 0 0

Other Staff Fixed Term Male 0 0 0 0

Other Staff Casual Female 0 24 24 3.1

Other Staff Casual Male 0 19 19 3.3

SUB-ToTAL Female 181 112 293 230.7

SUB-ToTAL Male 111 43 154 129.4

ToTAL Female 302 334 636 437.5

ToTAL Male 311 222 533 384.9

GRAND ToTAL  613 556 1169 822.4
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workforce data 2011

TEACHING STAFF

Employment Status  Full Time Part Time Total EFT

On-Going Female 87 62 149 126.2

On-Going Male 135 18 153 146.8

Fixed Term Female 42 39 81 65.8

Fixed Term Male 87 23 110 102.8

Sessional Female 0 153 153 34.2

Sessional Male 0 166 166 38.9

SUB-ToTAL Female 129 254 383 226.2

SUB-ToTAL Male 222 207 429 288.5

PACCT AND NON-TEACHING STAFF

Employment Status  Full Time Part Time Total EFT

Executive Officers Female 9 0 9 9

Executive Officers Male 6 0 6 6

Management Female 23 1 24 23.6

Management Male 21 3 24 23

PACCT On-Going Female 135 63 198 174.6

PACCT On-Going Male 55 11 66 62.6

PACCT Fixed Term Female 30 22 52 43.2

PACCT Fixed Term Male 20 8 28 24.5

PACCT Casual Female 0 24 24 8

PACCT Casual Male 0 6 6 3.4

Other Staff On-Going Female 2 1 3 2.5

Other Staff On-Going Male 16 6 22 19.7

Other Staff Fixed Term Female 0 0 0 0

Other Staff Fixed Term Male 0 0 0 0

Other Staff Casual Female 0 25 25 5.5

Other Staff Casual Male 0 27 27 3.2

SUB-ToTAL Female 199 136 335 266.4

SUB-ToTAL Male 118 61 179 142.4

ToTAL Female 328 390 718 492.6

ToTAL Male 340 268 608 430.9

GRAND ToTAL  668 658 1326 923.5



b
o

x
 h

il
l

 i
n

s
t

it
u

t
e

  
2

0
12

 a
n

n
u

a
l

 r
e

p
o

r
t

45

disclosure 
indeX
This index has been prepared to facilitate identification of Box Hill Institute’s compliance with 
statutory disclosure requirements. 

SOURCE 
REFERENCE REPORTING REQUIREMENT

Identify 
relevant 
page(s)

(A) REPORT OF OPERATIONS

1
SD 4.2(g) 

FRD 22

The Report of Operations is to include qualitative and quantitative information on operations and 
be prepared on a basis consistent with the financial statements prepared pursuant to the Financial 
Management Act 1994. This report is to provide users with information about:
•	 an institute and its activities;
•	 operational highlights for the reporting period;
•	 future initiatives; and
•	 other relevant information not included in the financial statements.

1 - 34

2
SD 4.2(h) 

FRD 22
The Report of Operations must be prepared in accordance with the requirements of the financial 
reporting directions.

41

3 SD 4.5.5
Signature of responsible person – Attestation of compliance with the Australian/New Zealand Risk 
Management Standard.

40

4
SD 4.2(j) 
FRD 22

Signature of responsible person – The Report of Operations must be signed and dated by the 
Accountable Officer in the case of a Government Department, or in the case of any other Public 
Sector Body, a member of the responsible Body.

11

Standard Disclosures in the Report of Operations
General Information

5 FRD 22 Manner of Establishment, including the relevant Minister. 3

6 FRD 22
The objectives, functions, powers and duties, linked to a summary of its activities, programs and 
achievements for the reporting period.

1 - 34

7 FRD 22 Nature and range of service provision, including the communities served. 2 - 4

8 FRD 22
Organisational chart(s) detailing members of the governing board and the CEO, and organisational 
chart(s) detailing occupants of senior officers and their responsibilities.

35

Governance
Recommendations of the TAFE Governance Review, May 

9
TAFE Gov.

Review

Outline of the structure of the board including:
•	 committees of the board;
•	 descriptions of their functions; and
•	 the names of the members of each committee.

28

10
TAFE Gov. 

Review

Outline of the structure of an institute board, including:
•	 names and qualifications of members of the board, including knowledge, experience and skills; 

and
•	 a summary of the number of meetings attended by each board member.

29 - 33

11
TAFE Gov. 

Review
Summary of training undertaken by board members throughout the year, including the number and 
type of programs.

34

12
TAFE Gov. 

Review
A summary of performance and activities of a board including a brief description of a values of a 
board and whether there is a code of conduct used to guide board decisions. 

2, 28

13 FRD 22B Statement on an institute’s workforce data for the current and previous reporting period. 43 - 44

14 FRD 22B Statement on the application of employment and conduct principles. 41

FS Financial Statements – please refer to the Box Hill Institute Financial Statements where relevant 
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46FS Financial Statements – please refer to the Box Hill Institute Financial Statements where relevant 

15 FRD 22B
Statement on occupational health and safety including appropriate performance indicators outlining 
an institute’s performance against such indicators and details of assessments and measures taken 
to improve the occupational health and safety of employees.

41 - 42

16 FRD 22B
A general statement on industrial relations within an institute and details of time lost through 
industrial accidents and disputes.

38

Disclosure Index

17 FRD 10
The Disclosure Index is to contain a list identifying the relevant clauses of Victorian legislation with 
statutory disclosure requirements.

45 - 48

18 FRD 10 A short description of the relevant requirement. 45 - 48

19 FRD 10 The page in an annual report where the disclosure in satisfaction of the relevant requirement is made. 45 - 48

Disclosures
Disclosure of ex gratia payments

20 FRD 11
Disclosure in aggregate of the nature and amount of any ex gratia payments incurred and written off 
during the reporting period. This is to be included in the notes to the financial statement.

41

Disclosures of responsible persons

21
FRD 21A (1)  

(a)
The name of each person holding a position that meets the definition of responsible person of the 
reporting entity at any time during the reporting period.

FS (8, 46, 
62)

Disclosures of remuneration of executive officers

22
FRD 21A (1) 

(b)
Where there is more than one responsible person during any reporting period, the total remuneration 
of all responsible persons received or receivable in connection to their employment.

FS (46)

23
FRD 21A 

(1) (c)

An analysis of remuneration of responsible persons:
•	 in bands of $10,000; and
•	 listing the number of responsible persons whose actual remuneration for the period falls within 

each band.

FS (46)

24
FRD 21A 

(1) (d)

A table disclosing the aggregate amount of related party transactions at the reporting date, including 
but not limited to the aggregate amount of repayments, shares and share options and other sources 
of remuneration that do not come under the definition of any of the above mentioned categories 
received by the responsible person in addition to base remuneration.

41

25 FRD 21(2) (a)

Total remuneration of all executive officers received or receivable in connection to their employment:
•	 including the remuneration of executive officers acting in the position of an accountable officer at 

any time during the reporting period; and
•	 to ensure disclosures are meaningful, additional information may need to be disclosed about the 

nature of such remuneration.

FS (47)

26 FRD 21 (2) (b)
Base remuneration disclosed separately from actual remuneration. Significant variations between 
total and base remuneration should  be supported by explanatory commentary.

FS (47)

27 FRD 21 (2) (c)
Accrual principles that apply in determining remuneration levels. All amounts received or receivable 
by the individual are to be disclosed.

FS (46-47)

Financial Information

28 FRD 22 Summary of financial results with comparative information for preceding four years. 37

29 FRD 22 Summary of significant changes in financial position. 36

30 FRD 22
Summary of operational and budgetary objectives, including performance against objectives and 
significant achievements.

36 - 37

31 FRD 22
Events subsequent to balance date which may have a significant effect on operations in subsequent 
years, including a summary of major changes affecting the achievement of operational objectives.

36

32 FRD 22

For each consultancy valued in excess of $10,000, set out:
•	 a schedule listing the consultants engaged;
•	 a summary of project involved;
•	 total project fees approved (excluding GST);
•	 expenditure for the reporting period (excluding GST); and
•	 future commitments relating to consultant.

39

33 FRD 22 Total number of consultancies individually valued at less than $10,000 (excl. of GST). 39

34 FRD 22 Total expenditure (exclusive of GST) of these consultancy engagements. 39

35 FRD 22 Financial information must be consistent with that included in the financial statements.
36 - 37, 
FS (9-13)



b
o

x
 h

il
l

 i
n

s
t

it
u

t
e

  
2

0
12

 a
n

n
u

a
l

 r
e

p
o

r
t

47

36 FRD 22

The Report of Operations should be presented in a format that complements the financial report as 
a whole:
•	 containing any additional information the accountable officer or the governing board considers 

appropriate; or
•	 any information which has been mandated by other authoritative pronouncements.
The Report of Operations must contain general and financial information, including other relevant financial 
information, outlining and explaining an entity’s operations and activities for the reporting period.

1 - 34

37 FRD 27

The Report of Operations must include in its report of operations an audited statement of 
performance including:
•	 the relevant performance targets and indicators as determined by the responsible Minister;
•	 the actual results achieved for that financial year against pre-determined performance targets and 

indicators; and
•	 an explanation of any significant variance between the actual results and performance targets 

indicators.

FS (63)

Other Relevant Information

38 FRD 22
Summary of Application of the Freedom of Information Act 1982 (including amendments of 3 August 
2007).

41

39 FRD 22
Statement on compliance with building and maintenance provisions of the Building Act 1993 
(including amendments of 1 July 2007).

42

40 FRD 22
Summary of the application and operation of the Whistleblowers Protection Act 2001 (including 
amendments of 1 July 2007) and disclosures required by this Act.

41

41 FRD 22

Statement on implementation and compliance with National Competition Policy, including statement 
on compliance with policy statements, especially:
•	 “Competitive Neutrality: A Statement of Victorian Government Policy”;
•	 “Victorian Government Timetable for the Review of Legislative Restrictions on Competition”; and
•	 any subsequent reforms.

41

42 FRD 22 Summary of environmental performance. FS (63)

43 FRD 22

Statement (to the extent applicable that the information listed in Appendix 1) is available on request 
to the relevant Minister, members of Parliament or the public.
This includes additional information available on request subject to provision of the Freedom of 
Information Act 1982 (including amendments of 3 August 2007).

42

44 FRD 22 Statement that declarations of pecuniary interests have been duly completed by all relevant officers. 41

45 FRD 22
Details of shares held by senior officers (as nominees or held beneficially in a statutory authority or 
subsidiary).

41

46 FRD 22 Details of publications produced by the entity about itself and how they can be obtained). 42

47 FRD 22
Details of major promotional, public relations and marketing activities undertaken to develop 
community awareness of the institute and its services.

42

48 FRD 22 Details of changes in prices, fees, charges, rates and levies charged by the institute. 42

49 FRD 22 Details of any major external reviews carried out on the institute. 42

50 FRD 22 Details of major research and development activities undertaken by the institute. 42

51 FRD 22 Details of overseas visits undertaken including a summary of the objectives and outcomes of each visit. 42

52 FRD 22
List of major committees sponsored by the institute, the purposes of each committee and the extent 
to which the purposes have been achieved.

42

Overseas Operations of Victorian TAFE Institutes

53 PAEC 
Financial and other information on initiatives taken or strategies relating to the institute’s international 
operations.

24 - 25

Auditor General
Recommendation in relation to Overseas Operations of Victorian TAFE Institutes – 3.110  
Auditor General, Special Reviews, 30 June 2002.

54  3.110

Information in annual reports of a TAFE institute should include:
•	 nature of strategic and operational risks;
•	 strategies established to manage such risks;
•	 performance measures and targets formulated for off shore operations; and
•	 the extent to which expected outcomes have been achieved.

24 - 25

FS Financial Statements – please refer to the Box Hill Institute Financial Statements where relevant 
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48

Financial Reporting Direction 27 – Presentation of Reporting and Performance Information
Audited Statements of Key Performance Measures (KPIs) must include an audited statement  
of performance for certain KPIs.

55 FRD 27A

Reporting and performance should be presented using KPIs and a signed Performance 
Management Certificate should also be completed.
(The following 11 are the mandatory KPIs)
1. Participation of 15-24 year olds.
2. Participation of 25-64 year olds.
3. Module Load Completion Rate.
4. Student satisfaction.
5. Total Cost per Student Contact Hour (SCH).
6. Working Capital Ratio.
7. Net Operating Margin.
8. Fee for Service Revenue.
9. Revenue per EFT Staff.
10. Student Contact Hours (SCH).
11. Energy Consumption.

FS (63)

(B) FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Part 7 of the Financial Management Act 1994 (FMA)

56 FMA 49 (a) Must contain such information as required by the Minister. FS (8, 62)

57 FMA 49 (b) Must be prepared in a manner and form approved by the Minister. FS (8, 62)

58 FMA 49 (c)
Must present fairly the financial transactions of an institute during the financial year to which they 
relate.

FS (8)

59 FMA 49 (d) Must present fairly the financial position of an institute as at the end of the year. FS (9 - 13)

60 FMA 49 (e) Must be certified by the Acountable Officer for an institute in the manner approved by the Minister. FS (8) 

The Financial Statements must be prepared in accordance with:

61 SD 4.2 (a)
Australian Accounting Standards (AAS and AASB) and other mandatory professional reporting 
requirements (including Urgent Issues Group Consensus Views and Statements of Accounting 
Concepts).

FS (14)

62 SD 4.2 (a) Financial Report Directions. FS (8)

63 SDA 4.2 (a) Business rules. FS (15 - 16)

The Financial Statements are to comprise the following:

64 SD 4.2 (b) An operating statement. FS (9)

65 SD 4.2 (b) A balance sheet. FS (10)

66 SD 4.2 (b) A statement of recognised income and expenses. FS (30 - 32)

67 SD 4.2 (b) A cash flow statement. FS (11)

68 SD 4.2 (b) Notes to the financial statements. FS (14 - 57)

The Financial Statements must, where applicable, be signed and dated by the Accountable  
Officer, CFAO and a member of the Responsible Body stating whether, in their opinion:

69 SD 4.2 (c)
The Financial Statements present fairly the financial transactions during the reporting period and the 
financial position at the end of the period.

FS (9 - 13)

70 SD 4.2 (c)
The Financial Statements are prepared in accordance with this direction and applicable Financial 
Reporting Directions.

FS (8)

71 SD 4.2 (c)
The Financial Statements comply with applicable Australian Accounting Standards (AAS and AAB) 
and other mandatory professional reporting requirements (including Urgent Issues Group Consensus 
Views and Statements of Accounting Concepts). 

FS (14)

FS Financial Statements – please refer to the Box Hill Institute Financial Statements where relevant 
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Elgar Campus 
465 Elgar Road Box Hill VIC 3128 

Nelson Campus 
853 Whitehorse Road Box Hill VIC 3128 

Whitehorse Campus 
1000 Whitehorse Road Box Hill VIC 3128 

Ceylon Campus 
30 – 32 Ceylon Street Nunawading VIC 3131 

Automotive, Pre-vocational Studies
77A Lexton Road Box Hill VIC 3128 

Melbourne City Campus (CAE)
253 Flinders Lane Melbourne VIC 3000

1300 BOX HILL (1300 269 445) 

www.boxhill.edu.au
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